
 
 
September 7, 2022 
 
To, 
BSE Limited 
Corporate Relationship Department 
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,  
Mumbai – 400 001 
 
Ref:     BSE Scrip Code No. – 542728 
 
Subject:   Submission  of  Annual  Report  under  Regulation  34(1)  of  SEBI  (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), Regulations 2015. 
 
Respected Sir/Madam,  
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, please find attached herewith Annual Report of 
SK International Export Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) for the Financial 
Year 2021‐22 along with the notice of the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company 
scheduled  to  be  held  on  Friday,  September  30,  2022  at  11.00  am  (IST)  at  the  registered 
office  of  the  Company  at  78,  Ground  A2,  Shah &  Nahar  Industrial  Estate,  Sitaram  Jadhav 
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013. 
 
The Annual Report of the Company  for the Financial Year 2021‐22  is also uploaded on the 
website of the Company at www.skinternational.in.  
 
Kindly take the aforesaid on record. 
 
Thanking You, 
 
For SK International Export Limited 
 
 
 
Purti Sadh 
Designation  : Director 
DIN    : 08228285 
Place    : Mumbai 
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Brands of the Company 
 

 
 
Brand: SEHSAA  

 
We  are  successfully  selling  scarves  in  the  local  market  under  this  brand  through  our 
orders in the retail market.  

 

 

Brand: SandKastle 

 
We  are  selling  beachwear  garments  under  this  brand  name  for  the  domestic  market 
through online marketplaces & local exhibitions. 
 
 

 
 

Brand: Fabrecycle 

 
Our Company believes in sustainable fashion and are hence creating textiles which help 
in  creating  sustainable  products  having  least  impact  on  the  Environment.  Scarves  & 
Garments are being sold under this brand which are manufactured out of recycled fabrics 
made out of processing cotton waste & plastic pet bottles. 
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Directors Report 
 
To  
The Members of 
SK International Export Limited 
 
The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’) are pleased to present the 
Fourth Annual Report on the business and operations of SK International Export Limited 
(hereinafter  referred  to  as  ‘the  Company/SKIEL’)  along  with  the  Audited  Financial 
Statements and Auditors’ reports thereon for the financial year (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘FY’) ended March 31, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as ‘year under review’). 
 
1. Financial Results: 

     (₹ in Lakhs) 

Standalone Financial Results 
 

Particulars  For  the  Financial 
Year  Ended 
March 31, 2022 
 

For the Financial 
Year  Ended 
March 31, 2021 
 

Total Revenue  736.92 494.41

   

Total Expenses  814.66 675.97

   

Exceptional Items  ‐ ‐

   

Profit/(Loss) before Tax  (77.70) (181.56)

   

(Provision for Tax)  ‐ ‐

     

Deferred Tax  0.25 (26.68)

 

For earlier years  ‐ ‐

     

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 
 

(77.94) (154.88)

   
2. Dividend: 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend for the 
year under review. 
 
Further, during the year under review, the Company was not required to transfer 
any unpaid/ unclaimed amount of dividend to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund.   
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3. Review of Operations: 

 
The global pandemic of Covid‐19 affected various industrial sectors in the country 
including the textile sector, which resulted in an adverse effect on the business & 
operational  structure  of  the  Company.  Despite  facing  setbacks  due  to  the 
pandemic,  Company  has  shown  a  promising  upside  trend  in  its  business 
operations  through  the  implementation  of  its  new  strategies  and  effective 
management of its resources. 
 
The Company was able to successfully navigate the impact of the second wave of 
Covid‐19 and display faster recovery on the back of learnings from the first wave 
of  Covid‐19,  a  resilient  business  model,  strong  customer  engagement,  and  an 
experienced  senior  management  team.  The  Company  continued  to  maintain 
operating  efficiency,  healthy  liquidity,  and  collection  efficiency.  With  good 
collection efficiency,  the Company  is well‐placed to deliver  robust growth  in  the 
coming years. 
 
Your  Directors  wish  to  state  that  the  Company  is  constantly  looking  for  new 
avenues  and  newer  concepts  to  be  introduced  for  its  products.  At  present,  the 
Company has been seeing a steady demand for its three brands in the domestic as 
well  as  international markets.  The Company  is  constantly  looking  for options  to 
curtail its overheads.   
 
Your Directors are of the opinion that the Company has had a minor setback and 
the Company  is  still  positioned  to  retain  a higher market positioning during  the 
subsequent financial years. 
 

4. Change in the nature of business: 
 
There were no changes in the nature of business of the Company during the year 
under review. 
 

5. Alteration in Memorandum of Association of the Company: 
 
During the year under review, the Company at it’s Extra‐ordinary General Meeting 
held  on  Friday,  April  9,  2021,  had  obtained  the  requisite  approval  from  its 
Shareholders to alter the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association  
to enable  the Company  to diversify  intoproviding services of healthcare  through 
the use of technology and digital marketing along with its existing business which 
could be a new and profitable segment for the Company. 
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6. Share Capital: 

 
As on March 31, 2022,  the  issued, subscribed, and paid‐up Share capital of your 
Company  was  ₹  7,33,19,540/‐  (Rupees  Seven  Crore  Thirty‐Three  Lakh  Nineteen 
Thousand  Five  Hundred  and  Forty)  comprising  of  7331954  (Seventy‐Three  Lakh 
Thirty‐One  Thousand  Nine  Hundred  and  Fifty‐Four)  equity  Shares  of  ₹  10/‐ 
(Rupees Ten) each. 

 
7. Events having major bearing on the Company’s affairs after the end of the FY: 

 
There were no major events having any bearing on the Company’s affairs after the 
end of the FY.  
 

8. Material  changes  and  commitments,  if  any,  affecting  the  financial  position  of 
the Company: 
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position 
of  the Company which occurred between  the end of  the  FY of  the Company  to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 
 

9. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals  impacting  the  going  concern  status  and  Company’s  operations  in 
future: 

 
There were no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in the 
future. 

 
10. Details of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies: 

 
The  Company  does  not  have  any  subsidiaries,  joint  ventures  or  associate 
Companies during the year under review.  
 
Further during the year under review, no Company has become or has ceased to 
be a Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company of SKIEL. 
 

11. Board of Directors 
 
(a) Changes in the composition of the Board: 

 
There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during 
the year under the review.  
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(b)  Director liable to retire by rotation: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Purti Hitesh 
Sadh (DIN: 08228285), Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 
AGM and being eligible, is seeking re‐appointment.  
 
The Board recommends her re‐appointment. 

 
(c)  Declaration by the Independent Directors: 

 
The  Company  has  received  the  necessary  declarations  from  each  of  the 
Independent  Directors  under  section  149(7)  of  the  Companies  Act  2013 
that they meet the criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(d)  Number of Meetings of the Board: 
 

The  Board  of  Directors  duly  met  5  (Five)  times  on  June  29,  2021, 
September  4,  2021,  October  22,  2021,  November  13,  2021,  and 
December  31,  2021,  during  the  year  under  review  in  respect  of  which 
proper  notices  were  given  and  the  proceedings  were  properly  recorded 
and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.  
 

(d)  Company  Policy  on  Director  Appointment,  Remuneration  and  Annual 
Formal Evaluation: 

 
The  Company  has  in  place  a  policy  relating  to  Director's  Appointment, 
remuneration,  and  other  related  matters  under  Section  178(3)  of  the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Appointment  and  evaluation  of  the  Independent  Directors  are  governed 
by  the  Code  for  Independent  Directors  provided  in  Schedule  IV  of  the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Pursuant  to  the provisions of  the Companies Act, 2013,  the  Independent 
Directors  at  their meeting held on March 21, 2022, have  carried out  the 
annual  performance  evaluation  of  the  non‐  Independent  Directors 
individually  as well  as  of  the Chairman.  Further,  they have  also  assessed 
the  quality,  quantity,  and  timeliness  of  the  flow of  information between 
the Company management and the Board. 
 

(e)  Committees of the Board: 
     

The Company has the following Committees pursuant to the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed therein: 
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    (i)  Audit Committee: 
       

The Audit Committee comprises of the following Members: 
       

Sr. 
No. 
 

Name of the Members  Designation
 

1.  Mr. Akshar J Patel 
 

Chairman

2.  Mr. Hitesh S Sadh  
 

Member 

3.  Mr. Jay N Naik  
 

Member 

       
The audit committee met four times during the year under review 
on  June  29,  2021,  October  22,  2021,  November  13,  2021,  and 
March 21, 2022.  

 
(ii)  Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

       
The  Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  comprises  of  the 
following Members: 

       

Sr. No. 
 

Name of the Members  Designation
 

1.  Mr. Jay N Naik   Chairman 
 

2.  Mr. Akshar J Patel 
 

Member 
 

3.  Mr. Bhavin P Mehta  Member 

 
The  Nomination  and  Remuneration  committee  met  once  during 
the year under review on March 21, 2022.  

 
(iii)  Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

       
The  Stakeholder  Relationship  Committee  comprises  of  the 
following Members: 

     

Sr. 
No. 
 

Name of the Members  Designation
 

1  Mr. Bhavin P Mehta Chairman 

2  Mr. Hitesh S Sadh  Member 
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Sr. 
No. 
 

Name of the Members  Designation
 

   

3  Ms. Purti H Sadh 
 

Member 

       
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee met once during the year 
under review on March 21, 2022.  

 
(f)  Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy: 

     
The Company has  duly  adopted  a Whistle  Blower  Policy  as  a  part  of  the 
Vigil  Mechanism  for  the  Employees  to  report  genuine  concerns  or 
grievances  to  the  Chairman  of  the  Audit  Committee  or  the Ombudsman 
and take steps to resolve the issues amicably.  

 
(g)  Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

 
In pursuance of Section 134 (3) (c) and (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Directors hereby confirm that: 
 
(i)   in  the  preparation  of  the  annual  accounts,  the  applicable 

accounting  standards had  been  followed  along  with  proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

 
(ii)   the  Directors  had  selected  such  accounting  policies  and  applied 

them consistently  and  made  judgments  and  estimates  that  are 
reasonable  and  prudent  so  as to  give  a  true  and  fair  view  of  the 
state  of  affairs  of  the  Company  at  the  end  of  the FY  and  of  the 
profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

 
(iii)   the  Directors  had  taken  proper  and  sufficient  care  for  the 

maintenance  of adequate  accounting  records  in  accordance  with 
the  provisions  of  this  Act  for safeguarding  the  assets  of  the 
Company  and  for  preventing  and  detecting  fraud  and other 
irregularities; 

   
(iv)   the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 

basis;  
 
(v)  the  Directors,  had  laid  down  internal  financial  controls  to  be 

followed by the Company and that such  internal financial controls 
are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
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(vi)    the  Directors  had  devised  proper  systems  to  ensure  compliance 
with  the provisions  of  all  applicable  laws  and  that  such  systems 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
12. Disclosure on compliance with Secretarial Standards: 

 
The  Directors  have  devised  proper  systems  to  ensure  compliance  with  the 
provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and such systems are adequate 
and operating effectively. 
 

13. Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
The following changes took place in the Key Managerial Personnel during the year 
under review: 
 
(i) Ms. Mitti M  Jain, Company Secretary of  the Company had  resigned  from 

the said post with effect from March 5, 2022. 
 

14. Auditors: 
 
(a)  Appointment of Statutory Auditors: 
   

N  B  T  &  Co,  Chartered  Accountants,  Mumbai,  (ICAI  Firm  Registration 
Number:  140489W)  have  been  appointed  as  Statutory  Auditors  of  the 
Company  for  a  term  of  5  years  i.e.  upto  the  FY  2024,  subject  to  their 
eligibility. 
 
N  B  T  &  Co,  Chartered  Accountants,  Mumbai,  (ICAI  Firm  Registration 
Number: 140489W) have given their written consent and eligibility to act 
as  the Statutory Auditors of  your Company and have  confirmed  that  the 
said  appointment would  be  in  conformity with  the  provisions  of  Section 
139 and Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditor) Rules 2014.  
 

 (b)  Auditors’ Report: 
 

The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year under review does not have any qualification.  
 
The Auditors report has a remark which is self‐explanatory and hence does 
not  require  any  further  clarification  of  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the 
Company.  
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15. Secretarial Audit: 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014,  the  Board  appointed  KNK  &  Co  LLP,  Company  Secretaries  in  Practice, 
having  firm  registration  number  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  ‘FRN’) 
L2018MH002800  to  undertake  Secretarial  Audit  of  the  Company  for  the  year 
under review.  
 
The Secretarial Auditors  report has a Qualification which  is  self‐explanatory and 
hence does not  require any  further clarification of  the Board of Directors of  the 
Company.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by KNK & Co LLP is furnished as ‘Annexure 
A’, and forms an integral part of this report.  

 
16. Deposits: 
   

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits during the year under 
review. 
 

17. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:  
 

The  Company  has  not  given  any  loans  or  provided  any  guarantee  or made  any 
investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
the year under review.  

 
18. Extract of Annual Return: 

   
Pursuant  to  Section  92(3)  read  with  Section  134(3)  (a)  of  the  Act,  the  Annual 
Return as on March 31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website and may be 
accessed at the following web link http://skinternational.in/.  

 
19. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 
   

All related party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, were 
entered into during the year under review were on an arm’s length basis and were 
in  the  ordinary  course  of  business.  There  are  no  materially  significant  related 
party  transactions  made  by  the  Company  with  Promoters,  Directors,  Key 
Managerial  Personnel  or  other  designated  persons which may  have  a  potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The Company has also adopted 
a  framework  on  related  party  transactions  to  ascertain  the  criteria  of  ‘ordinary 
course of business’ and ‘Arm’s Length Price’ 
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The details of the transactions with the related parties are set out in Form AOC 2 
which is annexed as ‘Annexure B’. 
 

20. Corporate Social Responsibility: 
   

The provisions of Section 135 with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility were 
not applicable to the Company during the year under review.  
 
The  Company was  also  not  required  to  develop  adopt  any  policy  on  Corporate 
Social Responsibility during the year under review.  

 
21. Internal Control System and their adequacy: 
     
  The  Company  has  duly  established  and  maintained  its  internal  controls  and 

procedures for the financial reporting and evaluated the effectiveness of Internal 
Control  Systems.  The  internal  control  systems  are  commensurate with  the  size, 
scale and complexity of its operations. 

 
22. Internal & Concurrent audit: 
 

The Company conducts  its  Internal and Statutory audit within the parameters of 
regulatory  framework  which  is  well  commensurate  with  the  size,  scale,  and 
complexity of its operations. 
 
The  Internal  Auditors  monitor  the  efficiency  and  effectiveness  of  the  internal 
control  systems  in  the  Company.  Significant  audit  observations  and  corrective 
actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee. 
 

23. Statement on remuneration of employees of the Company: 
     

The Company has two Executive Directors, one of whom is the Managing Director 
of the Company.  
 
(a) The  particulars  of  the  employees  who  are  covered  by  the  provisions 

contained  in  Rule  5(2)  and  rule  5(3)  of  Companies  (Appointment  and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are: 

 
Employed throughout the year      Nil 
Employed for part of the year      Nil 

 
(b) The  remuneration  paid  to  all  key  management  personnel  was  in 

accordance with remuneration policy adopted by the Company. 
 
In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the 
members  and  others  entitled  thereto,  excluding  the  information  on  employees’ 
particulars  which  is  available  for  inspection  by  the  members  at  the  Registered 
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office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up 
to  the  date  of  ensuing Annual General Meeting.  If  any member  is  interested  in 
inspecting  the  same,  such  member  may  write  to  the  Company  Secretary  in 
advance at info@skinternational.in. 

   
  None of the employees hold (by himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and 

dependent children) more than two percent of the Equity Shares of the Company. 
 
24. Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
   

The  Company  has  adopted  a  Policy  on  prevention,  prohibition  and  redressal  of 
Sexual  harassment  at  workplace  in  line  with  the  provisions  of  the  Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013  and  the  Rules  thereunder  for  prevention  and  Redressal  of  complaints  of 
sexual harassment at workplace. 
 
The  following  is  a  summary  of  Sexual  Harassment  complaints  received  and 
disposed off during the year under review: 
 

No.  of  cases  as 
on April 1, 2021 

No.  of  cases 
received  during 
the  year  under 
review 

No.  of  cases 
Disposed  during 
the  year  under 
review 
 

No.  of  cases 
pending  as  on 
March, 31, 2022 

NIL  NIL  NIL NIL 
 

   
25. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 

and Outgo: 
   

The  detail  of  conservation  of  Energy,  Technology  Absorption  and  Foreign 
Exchange earnings and outgo is annexed as ‘Annexure C’. 

 
26. Code of conduct: 

 
The Board of Director had approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.  
 
It is confirmed that all Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
their adherence  to  the provisions of  the Code of Conduct during the year under 
review.  
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27. Corporate Governance: 

 
The provisions of Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to 
the Company, as the Company is listed on the SME Platform of BSE Limited.  
 
Hence no corporate governance report is required to be annexed to this report.  
 

28. Disclosures Under The Insolvency And Bankruptcy Code, 2016: 
 
No  application  has  been  made  nor  is  any  proceeding  pending  under  the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review. 
 

29. Acknowledgements: 
 

Your Directors wish  to place on  record  their  deep  sense of  appreciation  for  the 
devoted services of all the employees of the Company for its growth.  
 
Your  Directors  also  acknowledge  with  gratitude  the  help  and  support  received 
from the Shareholders, Bankers, Customers, Exchanges and Regulators and hope 
to continue to get such support in times to come. 

 
 
            By the order of the Board of Directors 
            For SK International Export Limited 

 
 

            Sd/‐       Sd/‐ 
Hitesh S Sadh    Purti H Sadh 

Mumbai          Managing Director  Director 
September 3, 2022        DIN: 03055331  DIN: 08228285 
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Annexure A 

Secretarial Audit Report 
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members,  
SK International Export Limited 
CIN: L18109MH2018PLC314141 
78, Ground, A2, Shah and Nahar Industrial Estate,  
Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel,  
Mumbai – 400 013 
 
We  have  conducted  the  Secretarial  Audit  of  the  compliance  of  applicable  statutory 
provisions  and  the  adherence  to  good  corporate  practices  by  SK  International  Export 
Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that  provided  us  a  reasonable  basis  for  evaluating  the  corporate  conducts  /  statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our    verification    of    the Company’s  books, papers, minute books,  forms and 
returns  filed  and  other  records  maintained  by  the  Company  and  also  the  information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct  of  secretarial  audit,   we  hereby  report  that  in  our  opinion,  the  Company  has, 
during  the audit  period  covering  the  financial  year  ended March 31,  2022  (hereinafter 
referred  to  as  ‘year  under  review’)  complied  with  the  statutory  provisions  listed 
hereunder  and  also  that  the  Company  has  proper  Board‐processes  and  compliance‐
mechanism  in  place  to  the  extent,  in  the  manner  and  subject  to  the  reporting  made 
hereinafter. 
 
We  have  also  examined  the  books,  papers, minute  books,  forms  and  returns  filed  and 
other  records maintained by  the Company  for  the year under  review,  according  to  the 
provisions of: 
 
(a)  The Companies Act 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 
 
(b)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)   and  the  rules  made 

thereunder. 
 
(c)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye‐laws framed thereunder. 
 
(d)  Foreign  Exchange  Management  Act,  1999  and  the  rules  and  regulations  made 

thereunder  to  the  extent  of  Foreign  Direct  Investment,  Overseas  Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 
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(e)  The  Regulations  and  Guidelines  prescribed  under  the  Securities  and  Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.: 
 

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018; 
 

(ii)  The   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Prohibition   of   Insider   
Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 

(iii)  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Custodian  of  Securities) 
Regulations,  1996  (Not  applicable  to  the  Company  for  the  year  under 
review); 
 

(iv)  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Stock  Brokers  and  Sub‐
Brokers)  Regulations,  1992;  (Not  applicable  to  the Company  for  the  year 
under review); 
 

(v)  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Foreign  Portfolio  Investors) 
Regulations,  2014;  (Not  applicable  to  the  Company  for  the  year  under 
review); 
 

(vi)  The  Securities  Contracts  (Regulation)  (Stock  Exchanges  and  Clearing 
Corporations),  Regulations  2018  (Not  applicable  to  the  Company  for  the 
year under review); 
 

(vii)  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Listing  Obligations  and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

(viii)  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Substantial  Acquisition  of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

 
(f)  As  per  information  provided  by  the  Management,  the  following  laws  are 

applicable specifically to the Company: 
   

(i)  Factories Act, 1948; 
 
(ii)  Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws; 
 
(iii)  The Hazardous Wastes Management Rules 2016; 

 
We have also examined compliance with  the applicable clauses of  the  following during 
the year under review: 
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i.  Secretarial  Standards  with  regard  to  Meeting  of  Board  of  Directors  (SS‐1)  and 

General Meetings  (SS‐2)  issued by  the  Institute of  Company  Secretaries of  India 
(‘ICSI’); 

 
ii.  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 
 
During the year under review, we hereby report that the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above 
subject to the following observation: 
 
1.  The  Company  had  not  complied  with  Regulation  29(2)  of  The  Securities  and 

Exchange  Board  of  India  (Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements) 
Regulations,  2015  for  providing  prior  intimation  of  meeting  of  the  Board  of 
Directors for the approval of the financial results, within the prescribed timeliness 
for the half year ended September 30, 2021. 

   
We further report that: 
 
•  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non‐Executive Directors,  Independent Directors and Woman 
Director.  There  were  no  changes  in  the  composition  of  the  Board  of  Directors 
during the year under review. 

 
•  Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent seven days in advance, except in cases of 
meetings held on Shorter notices, and a system exists  for  seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
•  As per the minutes of the Meetings of the Company, all decisions were carried out 

unanimously. We did not find any dissenting Directors views in the minutes of the 
Meetings.  

 
We further report that, based on the information provided, representation made by the 
Company  and  review  of  the  Compliance  Certificates/Reports  taken  on  record  by  the 
Board  of  Directors  of  the  Company,  we  are  of  the  opinion  that  there  are  adequate 
systems and processes in place in the Company which is commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We  further  report  that,  during  the year under  review,  the Company had  the  following 
events which may have a bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
 
1.  The Company had altered the Memorandum of Association by adding clauses to 

its Main object clause.  
 
            For KNK & Co. LLP 
            Company Secretaries 
            Firm Registration Number: L2017MH002800 
            Peer Review No.: 1664/2022 
             
 
            Sd/‐ 
            Santosh K Kini 
            Partner 
Mumbai, August 24, 2022       FCS No.: 11809, C. P. No.: 18045 
            UDIN  : F011809D000842606 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure I’ 

and forms an integral part of this report. 
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                     Annexure I of Secretarial Audit Report 
To, 
The Members,  
SK International Export Limited 
CIN: L18109MH2018PLC314141 
78, Ground, A2, Shah and Nahar Industrial Estate,  
Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel,  
Mumbai – 400 013 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

 
2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable  assurance  about  the  correctness  of  the  contents  of  the  Secretarial 
records. The verification was done on  test basis  to ensure  that  correct  facts are 
reflected  in  secretarial  records. We believe  that  the processes  and practices we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 
4.  Where  ever  required, we have obtained  the Management  representation  about 

the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5.  The  compliance of  the provisions  of  Corporate  and other  applicable  laws,  rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company  nor  of  the  efficacy  or  effectiveness  with  which  the  management  has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For KNK & Co. LLP 

            Company Secretaries 
            Firm Registration Number: L2017MH002800 
            Peer Review No.: 1664/2022 
 
            Sd/‐ 
            Santosh K Kini 
            Partner 
Mumbai, August 24, 2022       FCS No.: 11809, C. P. No.: 18045 
            UDIN  : F011809D000842606   
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Annexure B 
 

Form ‐ AOC 2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub‐section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

 
1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  
 

Not Applicable 
 
2.  Details  of  Material  contracts  or  arrangements  or  transactions  at  arm’s  length 

basis: 
     

Nature  of 
contracts  / 
arrangements 
/ transactions  

Name(s)  of  the 
related party  

 Duration 
of  the 
contracts / 
arrangeme
nts/transa
ctions  

 Salient  terms  of 
the  contracts  or 
arrangements  or 
transactions 
including  the 
value, if any:  
 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by  the 
Board,  if 
any:  

 Amount 
paid  as 
advances
, if any:  

Purchase  of 
readymade 
goods 

Aastha Prints  Perpetual  Up  to  a maximum 
aggregate value of 
₹  50,00,000 
(Rupees  Fifty 
Lakhs) 
 

February 
4, 2019 

NIL 

Processing  of 
goods on Job‐
Work basis 

Trends & Fashion Perpetual Up  to  a maximum 
aggregate value of 
₹  2,00,00,000 
(Rupees  Two 
Crore) 
 

February 
4, 2019 

NIL

Purchase  of 
Raw 
Materials 

Sehej  Saraa 
Fashion  Private 
Limited 

Perpetual Up  to  a maximum 
aggregate value of 
₹  10,000,000 
(Rupees  Ten 
Crores) 
 
 
 
 

February 
4, 2019 

NIL
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Nature  of 
contracts  / 
arrangements 
/ transactions  

Name(s)  of  the 
related party  

 Duration 
of  the 
contracts / 
arrangeme
nts/transa
ctions  

 Salient  terms  of 
the  contracts  or 
arrangements  or 
transactions 
including  the 
value, if any:  
 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by  the 
Board,  if 
any:  

 Amount 
paid  as 
advances
, if any:  

Salary  Mr.  Sharvankumar
Sadh 

Perpetual As  may  be 
approved  by  the 
Board  and  Audit 
Committee. 
 

March  9, 
2021 

NIL

 
For SK International Export Limited 

 
 

 
            Sd/‐      Sd/‐ 

Hitesh S Sadh    Purti H Sadh 
Mumbai          Managing Director  Director 
September 3, 2022        DIN: 03055331  DIN: 08228285 
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Annexure C 

A. Conservation of Energy: 
 
Your Company operates in a safe and environmentally responsible manner for the 
long‐term benefit of all stakeholders. The Company works towards minimizing the 
environmental  impacts  of  its  operations  through  efficient  use  of  resources  and 
measures,  to  consernve  the  energy,  promote  use  of  renewal  energy  and  drive 
energy efficiency in its operations. 
 
The following steps were taken to conserve the energy:  
 
1. The  Company  is  constantly  striving  towards  maintaining  and  installing 

energy efficient equipment’s in order to ensure conservation of energy; 
 
2. The Company is optimizing its energy consumption and is in the process of 

installing alternate sources of energy. The Company is also in the process 
of identifying cheaper power sources in order to further reduce the energy 
consumption; 

 
3. The  Company  has  not  made  any  capital  investments  on  energy 

conservation equipment’s during the year under review. 
 

B. Research  and  Development  and  Technology  Absorption,  Adaptation  and 
Innovation:  

 
During  the  year  under  review,  the  Company  has  not  carried  out  any  activities 
involving  Research  and  Development.  Further  the  Company  has  not  acquired 
developed, assimilated or utilized technological knowledge and capability from an 
external source.  

 
C.  Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
 

(i) The  earnings  of  the  Company  during  the  year  under  review  in  Foreign 
Exchange is ₹ 278.17 Lakhs. 

 
(ii) There was no foreign exchange outgo during the year under review.  
 

For SK International Export Limited 
 
          Sd/‐      Sd/‐ 

Hitesh S Sadh    Purti H Sadh 
Mumbai            Managing Director  Director 
September 3, 2022          DIN: 03055331  DIN: 08228285 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
 

The key issues of the Management Discussion and Analysis are given below. 
 
1. Global Outlook: 

 
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and its effects on commodity markets, supply chains, 
inflation, and financial conditions have steepened the slowdown in global growth. 
One key risk to the outlook is the possibility of high global inflation accompanied 
by tepid growth. Eventually, this resulted in a sharp tightening of monetary policy 
in  advanced  economies,  and  lead  to  financial  stress  in  some  emerging markets 
and  developing  economies.  A  forceful  and wide‐ranging  policy  response will  be 
required  to  boost  growth,  bolster macroeconomic  frameworks,  reduce  financial 
vulnerabilities, and support vulnerable groups. 
 
The world  is  facing  a  COVID‐19 pandemic outbreak with  an unprecedented  and 
enormous  impact  on  the  lives  of  humankind.  As  the Omicron  COVID‐19  variant 
spreads,  it  forced  countries  to  reimpose  mobility  restrictions. The  economic 
engine has  suffered a big blow  in economic and  financial performance  in all  the 
regions. The pandemic affected the services, manufacturing, trade, supply chain, 
and particularly the small businesses, which disrupted all the economic indicators, 
forecasts, and growth patterns. Rising energy prices and supply disruptions have 
resulted in higher and more broad‐based inflation than anticipated. 
 
As advanced economies  lift policy  rates,  risks  to  financial  stability and emerging 
market  and  developing  economies,  capital  flows,  currencies,  and  fiscal  position 
especially with debt levels have increased significantly in the past two years may 
emerge. 
 
Meanwhile, India is among the most affected countries, along with Brazil and the 
USA. The lockdown strategy in India had resulted in a significant drop in domestic 
consumption and  investment,  as well  as  a drop  in business  and  vacation  travel, 
supply‐side production and trade disruptions, and demand‐side shocks impacting 
trade and production linkages. 
 
Global growth is projected to slowdown from an estimated 6.1 percent in 2021 to 
3.6 percent in 2022 and 2023. Beyond 2023, global growth is forecast to decline to 
about 3.3 percent over the medium term. Crucially, this forecast assumes that the 
conflict  remains  confined  to  Ukraine,  further  sanctions  on  Russia  exempt  the 
energy sector, and the pandemics health and economic impacts abate throughout 
2022.  
 
Moreover,  the  war  in  Ukraine  has  increased  the  probability  of  wider  social 
tensions. Inflation is expected to remain elevated for longer than in the previous 
forecast, driven by war‐induced commodity price increases and broadening price 
pressures.  
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The  global  textile  market  was  pegged  at  the  US  $654.7  billion  in  2021  and 
expected  to  reach  USD  821.87  billion,  growing  at  a  CAGR  of  6%  during  the 
forecasted period. The growth  is attributed to the companies repositioning their 
operations  and  reviving  from  the  COVID‐19  impact,  which  had  earlier  led  to 
limiting  containment  measures  like  social  distancing,  remote  working,  and  the 
shutdown of commercial activities inducing operational challenges. 
 
By  2022,  Inflation  is  projected  at  5.7  percent  in  advanced  economies  and  8.7 
percent in emerging market and developing economies. 

 
2. Textile Industry & Market Growth in India: 

 
The textile industry is one of the oldest business options in India since the ancient 
age and the second largest employer in India. 
 
India is the world’s second‐largest producer of textiles and garments. Both skilled 
laborers  and  unskilled  officials  are  needed  to  run  this  business  smoothly.   The 
products of  the  Indian  textile  industry with  traditional  designs  and  textures are 
very popular all over the world.  The Indian textile and apparel  industry  is highly 
diversified  with  a  wide  range  of  segments  ranging  from  products  of  traditional 
handloom, handicrafts, wool, and silk products to the organized textile industry in 
India. The organized textile industry in India is characterized by the use of capital‐
intensive  technology  for  the  mass  production  of  textile  products  and  includes 
spinning, weaving, processing, and apparel manufacturing. 
 
Market Size 
 
India’s  textiles  industry has  around 4.5  crore  employed workers  including  35.22 
lakh handloom workers across the country. 
 
The  Indian textile and apparel  industry  is expected to grow at a 10% CAGR from 
2019‐20 to reach US$ 190 billion by 2025‐26. 
 
India  is  the  world’s  largest  producer  of  cotton.  Estimated  production  stood  at 
362.18  lakh bales  during  cotton  season 2021‐22. Domestic  consumption  for  the 
2021‐22 cotton season is estimated to be at 338 lakh bales. 
 
The  textiles and apparel  industry contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to 
industrial production, and 12% to exports. 
 
India’s textile and apparel exports (including handicrafts) stood at US$ 44.4 billion 
in  FY22,  a  41%  increase  YoY.  Exports  of  readymade  garments  including  cotton 
accessories stood at US$ 6.19 billion in FY22.   
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Further,  the  Indian  Textile  and  Apparel  Market  reached  a  value  of  US$  151.2 
Billion in 2021. The market is expected to reach US$ 344.1 Billion by 2027, CAGR 
of 14.8% during 2022‐2027. 
 
Investment 
 
The textile sector has witnessed a spurt  in  investment during the  last  five years. 
The  industry  (including  dyed  and  printed)  attracted  Foreign  Direct  Investment 
(FDI) worth US$ 3.99 billion from April 2000‐March 2022. 
 
 In  November  2021,  Federico  Salas,  the  Mexican  Ambassador  to  India, 

visited  the Khadi  India Pavilion at  the  India  International Trade Fair 2021 
and  suggested  that  India  and Mexico  should  come  together  to  promote 
Khadi globally. 
 

 Companies  in  home  textiles  are  using  technology  to  optimize  the  value 
chain. For example,  in October 2021, Welspun  India  introduced Wel‐Trak 
2.0—an upgraded,  patented  end‐to‐end  traceability  technology—to  track 
textile raw materials throughout the supply chain. 

 
 Home textile companies in India are also leveraging strategic partnerships 

to strengthen their business operations and foothold in the country. 
 

 In October 2021, Welspun India collaborated with DuPont Biomaterials to 
introduce a home textile range and strengthen the Company’s sustainable 
textile business. 
 

 In May 2021, Indo Count Industries Ltd. (ICIL) announced an investment of 
Rs. 200 crore (US$ 26.9 million) to expand its production capacity. 

  
Government Initiatives 
 
The  Indian Government has come up with several export promotion policies  for 
the textile sector. It has also allowed 100% FDI in the sector under the automatic 
route. 
 
Initiatives taken by the Government of India are: 
 
 In  March  2022,  the  Ministry  of  Textiles,  in  collaboration  with  the 

Confederation of Indian Industries (CII), organized a day‐long International 
Conference  on  Technical  Textiles  with  the  theme:  Creating  the Winning 
Leap in Technical Textiles. 
 

 The Government of  India has earmarked a corpus of Rs. 1,000 crore (US$ 
127.72  million)  dedicated  to  research  and  development  of  the  technical 
textiles sector. 
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 In March 2022, the Bihar government submitted a proposal to the Ministry 

of Textiles to set up a mega hub under the PM Mitra Mega Textile Park. 
 

 In March 2022, Tamil Nadu Chief Minister Mr. MK Stalin announced  that 
the State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd (SIPCOT) will 
set up a mega textile park in the Virudhunagar district. 

 
 Under the Union Budget 2022‐23, the total allocation for the textile sector 

was Rs. 12,382 crore  (US$ 1.62 billion). Out of  this, Rs.133.83 crore  (US$ 
17.5 million) is for the Textile Cluster Development Scheme, Rs. 100 crore 
(US$ 13.07 million) for the National Technical Textiles Mission, and Rs. 15 
crore  (US$ 1.96 million) each  for PM Mega  Integrated Textile Region and 
Apparel parks scheme and the PLI Scheme. 

 
 For  the  export  of  handloom  products  globally,  the  Handloom  Export 

Promotion  Council  (HEPC)  is  participating  in  various  international 
fairs/events  with  handloom  exporters/weavers  to  sell  their  handloom 
products in the international markets under NHDP. 

 
 The  Ministry  of  Textiles  has  also  been  implementing  the  Handloom 

Marketing  Assistance  (HMA),  a  component  of  the  National  Handloom 
Development  Programme  (NHDP)  all  across  India.  HMA  provides  a 
marketing  platform  to  the  handloom  weavers/agencies  to  sell  their 
products  directly  to  the  consumers  and  develop  and  promote  the 
marketing channel through organizing expos/events in domestic as well as 
export markets. 

 
 In  November  2021,  Minister  of  Textiles,  Commerce,  and  Industry, 

Consumer Affairs & Food and Public Distribution, Mr. Piyush Goyal, stated 
the desire to target a 3‐5x time increase in the export of technical textiles 
worth US$ 10 billion over the next three years. 

 
 The Indian government has notified uniform goods and services tax rate of 

12% on man‐made fabrics (MMF), MMF yarns, MMF fabrics, and apparel, 
which came into effect from January 1, 2022. 

 
 Minister  of  Textiles,  Commerce,  and  Industry,  Consumer  Affairs  &  Food 

and  Public  Distribution, Mr.  Piyush  Goyal,  announced  a mega  handloom 
cluster  in Manipur  and  a  handloom  and  handicraft  village  at Moirang  in 
Bishnupur. The mega cluster will be set up at an estimated cost of Rs. 30 
crore  (US$  4.03  million)  under  the  National  Handloom  Development 
Programme (NHDP). 

 
 In October 2021, Minister for Commerce and Industry, Textiles, Consumer 

Affairs,  Food  &  Public  Distribution,  Mr.  Piyush  Goyal,  announced  the 
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creation  of  100  textile  machinery  champions  in  the  country,  and  to 
promote them in the global market. Through this, the government aims to 
make India a global player in textiles machinery. 

 
 In October 2021, the Ministry of Textiles approved the continuation of the 

comprehensive  handicrafts  cluster  development  scheme  with  a  total 
outlay  of  Rs.  160  crore  (US$  21.39  million).  Through  this  scheme,  the 
government aims to support domestic SMEs and local artisans. 

 
 In  October  2021,  the  government  introduced  SAMARTH  training  at  75 

training  centers  across  the  country,  to  accelerate  the  scheme’s  coverage 
among artisans. 

 
 The government allocated funds worth Rs. 17,822 crore (US$ 2.38 billion) 

between  FY16‐22  for  the  ‘Amended  Technology  Up‐gradation  Fund 
Scheme’ (A‐TUFS), to boost the Indian textile  industry and enable ease of 
doing business. 

 
 To  boost  man‐made  fibre  exports,  the  Government  removed  the  anti‐

dumping  duty  on  Purified  Terephthalic  Acid,  Viscose  Staple  Fibre  and 
Acrylic. The Government permitted the extension of RoSCTL scheme up to 
March 2024  to  improve export competitiveness  related  to  Indian apparel 
and made‐ups. 

 
 The Government approved the setting up of Seven Pradhan Mantri Mega 

Integrated  Textile  Region  and  Apparel  (PM  MITRA)  parks  in 
greenfield/brownfield sites with an outlay of H4,445 crores for seven years 
up  to  2027‐  28.  These  parks  will  enable  the  textile  industry  to  become 
globally  competitive,  attract  large  investment  and  boost  employment 
generation. 

 
 The  Government  approved  Production  Linked  Incentive  (PLI)  Scheme  for 

Textiles, with an approved outlay of H10,683 crore to promote production 
of MMF apparel, MMF fabrics and Technical Textiles. 

 
 The Government allocated an outlay of H1000 Crores for advance research 

and  innovation  in  technical  textiles  at  par  with  the  best  in  the  world. 
Research topics in 94 categories (fibres and composites, geo textiles, agro 
textiles,  protective  textiles,  medical  textiles,  defence  textiles,  sports 
textiles,  and  environmentally  friendly/  biodegradable  technical  textiles) 
were identified and research proposals invited. 

 
The  government  is  implementing  various  schemes  (Amended  Technology 
Upgradation  Fund  Scheme,  Schemes  for  the  development  of  the  Powerloom 
Sector, Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks, SAMARTH‐ The Scheme for Capacity 
Building in Textile Sector, Jute (ICARE‐ Improved Cultivation Financial Statements 
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| 75 and Advanced Retting Exercise), Integrated Processing Development Scheme 
(IPDS),  Silk  Samagra,  National  Handloom  Development  Programme,  National 
Handicraft Development Programme,  Integrated Wool Development Programme 
(IWDP),  etc.)  catering  exclusively  for  the  promotion  and  development  of  textile 
sector on a pan‐India basis. 

 
Achievements 
 
Following are the achievements of the Government in the past four years: 
 
 In April 2022, Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food 

and  Public  Distribution  and  Textiles,  Mr.  Piyush  Goyal,  said  that  new 
Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreements with Australia and the UAE 
would open infinite opportunities for textiles and handloom. Indian textile 
exports  to  Australia  and  the  UAE  would  now  face  zero  duties,  and  he 
expressed confidence that soon Europe, Canada, the UK and GCC countries 
would also welcome Indian textile exports at zero duty. 
 

 The Khadi and Village  Industries Commission  (KVIC) achieved  turnover of 
Rs. 1.15 lakh crore (US$ 14.68 billion) in FY22, a growth of 20.54% YoY, and 
more than any Indian FMCG Company managed in FY22. 

 
 In  CY20,  the  Cotton  Corporation of  India made  a  record  procurement  of 

151 lakh bales under MSP operations, which is 290% higher than the 38.43 
lakh bales procured during the corresponding period last year. 

 
 Under the Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks (SITP), 59 textile parks were 

sanctioned, out of which, 22 have been completed. 
 

 Employment increased to 45 million in FY19 from 8.03 in FY15. 
 Sangam India Ltd, one of the foremost producers in PV dyed yarn, cotton 

and OE yarn and also ready to stitch fabric, has installed two solar power 
plants  of  5 MW  that  on  average  helps  them  to  bring  down  their  carbon 
footprint by at least 20% per annum. SIL also plans to increase the use of 
recycled fibre, leading to lesser consumption of plastic waste by using it as 
a raw material. 

 
Road Ahead 

 
India is working on major initiatives to boost its technical textile industry. There is 
tough competition  from China, Bangladesh, Pakistan, and Vietnam  for exporting 
textile  products  in  the  global  market.  However,  the  Indian  textile  industry  still 
manages for a comeback even after the decline of the business in 2020 – 21. 
 
All  garment manufacturing  units  are  returning  to  the  normal  state  though  at  a 
slow  pace  at  present.  The  Indian  textile  industry  is  aiming  to  export  products 
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worth $40 to $100 billion within 2027. These garment units are fast expanding in 
size  and  investments,  to  meet  the  bulk  orders  pouring  in  from  various  foreign 
countries in the west. The promotion of this industry through several government 
schemes has been the greatest in the last three decades. The apparel industry is 
progressing fast with the manufacturing of more varieties of products. This textile 
business  is  also  spreading  in more  countries  across  the world,  leading  to more 
earning of foreign money. 
 
However,  the  Indian  textile  industry  still  needs  to  progress  in  the  research  and 
development of designs. The quality of raw materials also needs to be upgraded 
for  the  production  of  the  best  quality  garments.  Now,  the  textile  industry 
contributes  5%  to  the  GDP  from  domestic  trade  and  7%  from  foreign  exports. 
However,  these  values  are  expected  to  increase  this  year, making  this  industry 
one of the leaders in the Indian economy. 
 

3. Our Business: 
 
Our  Company  has  created  a  distinct  identity  of  its  own  in  the  International 
business  domain  and  mainly  caters  to  European  market  i.e.  Spain,  Germany, 
France,  Netherlands,  and  UK.  Our  Company  is  a  manufacturer  and  exporter  in 
Scarves  and  Beachwear.  Our  Company  is  engaged  in  manufacturing  and 
marketing of women and men’s apparels like scarves, shawls, sarongs, headband 
&  bandanas  and  Beachwear  garments  in  all  qualities  like  silk,  viscose,  cotton, 
polyester & wool and several blends. We also entered in the ethnic wear category 
by developing trendy dupattas at affordable prices catering women who look for 
fashionable styles at affordable prices. 

 
We  are  also  gearing  ourselves  for  manufacturing  and  trading  of  Indian  ethnic 
wears  offering  wide  range  of  ethnic  wears  category  by  developing  trendy 
dupattas  for  women.  Our  Company  believes  that  fashion  is  for  all  women  and 
hence, took a challenge to provide the affordable range of fashionable garments 
to the women  in  international and domestic market. We have also entered  into 
the  Kids  segment  with  our  own  domestic  brand  Sand  Kastle  for 
Beachwear/Holiday  wear  garments,  and  fashion  accessories.  Our  raw  material 
sourcing is from all over India thus sourcing provides a huge variety of fabrics and 
trims  at  best  possible  prices  thus  keeping  our  costs  low.  We  use  modern 
machinery  for  our  manufacturing  requirements,  our  Company  has  never  shied 
away  from  purchasing  any  modern  equipment  to  maintain  the  high  standards 
that  we  have  set  for  ourselves.  This  enables  us  to  reduce  the  time  spent  in 
completing  your  order.  With  our  own  design  team,  we  have  endeavored  to 
introduce new styles,  fits,  finishes. We have clean  in house production  facilities 
like sewing, cutting, ironing, finishing, quality control, packing & dispatch. 
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A major portion of our product  is manufactured at our  in‐house  factory at Virar 
(Palghar).  We  manufacture  products  on  make  to  order  basis  as  per  current 
fashion forecast  for several big brands  in  International & domestic markets. We 
serve our customers through the channels of wholesale, retail and e‐commerce in 
domestic market. We are also registered as member exporter with Apparel Export 
Promotion Council. 

 
We  offer  an  extensive  range  of  designs,  colours,  styles  and  patterns  of  Indian 
ethnic wears  offering wide  range  of  ethnic wears  like  dupattas,  best  suited  for 
every  occasion.  With  large  number  of  different  colours  and  styles,  customers 
have  a  good  number  of  options.  Right  from  the  initial  stage  that  involves  the 
client  preferences  to  constructing  the  most  desirable  Collections,  we  ensure 
complete  satisfaction  to  our  client.  We  not  only  develop  styles  as  per 
international  trends,  but  we  also  appreciate  the  needs  of  each  customer  and 
hence we develop sample collections for customers according to their needs. We 
make the garments according to customer’s preferences and demand. 

 
Our  focus  is  on maintaining  relationship with  big  brands  to  get  orders  at  large 
scale to increase our business and revenue. Our Export production is on make to 
order basis. We  facilitate our clients with accessories/trims/packing as per  their 
requirement  which  include  labels,  tags,  poly  bags,  cartons  in  qualities,  sizes  & 
colours as per the requirement & their specification manuals. 

 
Quality  is  of  the  paramount  importance  as  it  can  essentially  make  or  break  a 
brand.  A  failure  to  maintain  quality  standard  can  prove  to  be  extremely 
detrimental to the business of our Company. We give quality utmost priority at all 
stages of production to ensure our customers are thoroughly satisfied. We have 
three  levels of quality checks  in place to make sure that  the requisite quality of 
the product is being achieved at every stage of manufacture from raw materials 
to  boxed  stock.  We  constantly  endeavor  to  maintain  and  exceed  customer 
expectations  consistently  in  all  aspects  of  quality.  Every  order  goes  through 
careful  quality  inspection  by  our  qualified  checkers  during  every  stage  of 
production  until  final  dispatch.  We  believe  our  Company's  edge  over  its 
competitors  is  the  value‐price  relationship,  Superior  Design  collection,  timely 
delivery  and  efficient  supply  chain.  We  are  synonymous  with  providing  an  all 
compassing  service  i.e.  Sourcing,  Quality,  Value  and  Reliability  of  supply  as 
required by  the client. Our system  incorporating numerous and varied suppliers 
give  us  that  edge  to  stay  one‐step  ahead  of  our  competitors  in  today’s  rapidly 
moving business market. We strive to offer  flexibility which suits your  individual 
client’s needs. Customer satisfaction is top priority with Company as we believe in 
maintaining a regular client base which is proof that our clients are issuing repeat 
orders and therefore are very satisfied with our service. 
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We  were  established  with  a  clear  horizon  and  passion  of  serving  the  fashion 
industry.  We  firmly  believe  in  customer  offering,  customer  centric  approach, 
standard  product  quality,  ethical  business  practices with  social  compliance  and 
corporate governance. 

 
Our  Company  is  equipped  with  a  dedicated  team  of  creative  people  (Fashion 
designers,  Fashion  Technologists,  CAD  Designers,  Sketch  and  Paint  Artists,  and 
Stylists)  involved in fashion forecasting styles, patterns, fits and finishes to meet 
the latest fashion trends. 

 
Our  capabilities  have  made  us  confident  of  efficiently  fulfilling  customers’ 
requirements around the globe and set milestones in the global market. We thus 
invite  new  business  ventures  and  bulk  orders  and  assure  long  lasting  business 
relations with the commitment of timely delivery of orders. 
 

4. Risk Management: 
   

The Company possesses a well‐defined risk management framework. The primary 
goal  of  risk management  is  to  recognize,  supervise  and  undertake  preventative 
steps with reference to incidents that may create risks for the business. 

 
5. Internal control systems and their adequacy: 

 
The  Company’s  internal  control  system  (including  internal  financial  control 
system) has been monitored continuously and updated to ensure that assets are 
safeguarded,  regulations  established  are  complied  with  and  pending  issues  are 
promptly addressed. The reports presented by  internal auditors are reviewed by 
the audit committee on a routine basis. The committee makes note of the audit 
observations and takes corrective actions, if necessary. The committee maintains 
constant dialogue with statutory and internal auditors to make sure that internal 
control systems are operating effectively. 
 

6. Cautionary Statement: 
 

The  statements  made  in  this  section  describe  the  Company’s  objectives, 

projections,  expectation  and  estimations  which  may  be  ‘forward  looking 

statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations 
 
 

 For SK International Export Limited 
 
           

Sd/‐      Sd/‐ 
Hitesh S Sadh    Purti H Sadh 

Mumbai            Managing Director  Director 
September 3, 2022          DIN: 03055331  DIN: 08228285 
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Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer Certification 

 
To,  
The Board of Directors, 
SK International Export Limited 
 
Dear Members, 
 
We, Hitesh S Sadh, Managing Director and Sneha S Parab, Chief Financial Officer of SK 
International Export Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:  
 
1. We  have  reviewed  the  Financial  Statements  and  Cash  Flow  Statement  of  the 

Company  and all  notes  on  accounts  and  the Board’s  Report  for  the  year  ended 
March 31, 2022. 
 

2. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state 
a  material  fact  necessary  to  make  statements  made,  in  the  light  of  the 
circumstances  under  which  such  statements  were  made,  not  misleading  with 
respect to the period covered by this report. 

 
3. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and  are  in  compliance  with  existing  Accounting  Standards,  applicable  laws  and 
regulations.  

 
4. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into 

by  the  Company  during  the  year  ended  March  31,  2022,  that  are  fraudulent, 
illegal or violate the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics.  

 
5. We  accept  responsibility  for  establishing  and  maintaining  internal  controls  for 

financial reporting for the Company and we have – 
 

• reviewed  the  effectiveness  of  internal  control  systems  of  the  Company 
pertaining to financial reporting.  
 

• Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 
which we  are  aware,  have  been  disclosed  to  the  auditors  and  the  Audit 
Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.  

 
6. We affirm that –  

 
• There  has  not  been  any  significant  changes  in  internal  control  over 

financial reporting during the year under reference.  
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• There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the 
year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.  
 

• We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with 
involvement  therein  of  the  management  or  any  employee  having  a 
significant  role  in  the  Company’s  internal  control  system  over  financial 
reporting.  
 

7. We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the Audit Committee 
of  the  Company  and  we  have  provided  protection  to  the  whistleblowers  from 
unfair termination and other unfair or prejudicial employment practices. 

 
8. We further declare that all Board members have affirmed compliance with Code 

of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered under this report. 
 

By the order of the Board of Directors 
            For SK International Export Limited 

 
 

            Sd/‐      Sd/‐ 
Hitesh S Sadh    Sneha S Parab 

Mumbai          Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer 
September 3, 2022        DIN: 03055331   
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DECLARATION  UNDER  REGULATION  34(3)  READ  WITH  SCHEDULE  V  OF  SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS,  2015  IN  RESPECT  OF  COMPLIANCE  WITH  COMPANY’S  CODE  OF 
CONDUCT 

 
This  is  to  confirm  that  the  members  of  Board  of  Directors  and  Senior  Management 
Personnel  of  the  Company  have  affirmed  compliance with  the  Code  of  Conduct  of  SK 
International Export Limited, as applicable to them, for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2022. 
 
By the order of the Board of Directors 
For SK International Export Limited 

 
 

Sd/‐       
Hitesh S Sadh     
Managing Director   
DIN: 03055331 
 
Mumbai, September 3, 2022   
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Members of SK International Export Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

   

Opinion 

We  have  audited  the  accompanying  financial  statements  of  SK  International  Export 

Limited  (“the Company”), which  comprise  the Balance  Sheet  as  at  31st March,  2022,  the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes 

to  the  Financial  Statements,  including  a  summary  of  significant  accounting  policies  and 

other explanatory information.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid financial statements give the  information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the  Indian Accounting  Standards  prescribed  under  section  133  of  the Act  read with  the 

Companies  (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2022, the its loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements Note No. 

16.  In  our Opinion  Inventory  records were  not  adequately maintained  by  the Company, 

therefore the Inventory Valuation as on 31st March, 2022, could not be verified by us with 

reference  to  the  requirement  of AS‐2  “Valuation  of  Inventories”,  and  accordingly  in  the 

absence of  adequate  inventory  records, we  could not  comment on  the possible  impact,  if 

any, on Statement of Profit and Loss for the respective period ended on 31st March 2022 on 

account  of  short/  (excess)  valuation  of  inventories. We  have  relied  upon  the  valuation 

certificate provided by the Management of the Company. 

 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We  conducted  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements  in  accordance with  the  Standards on 

Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards  are  further  described  in  the  Auditor’s  Responsibilities  for  the  Audit  of  the 

Financial  Statements  section  of  our  report.  We  are  independent  of  the  Company  in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(“ICAI”)  together  with  the  ethical  requirements  that  are  relevant  to  our  audit  of  the 

standalone  financial  statements  under  the  provisions  of  the  Act  and  the  Rules  made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 

us  is sufficient and appropriate  to provide a basis for our audit opinion on  the standalone 

financial statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key  audit  matters  are  those  matters  that,  in  our  professional  judgment,  were  of  most 

significance  in  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements  of  the  current  period.  These matters 

were  addressed  in  the  context of our audit of  the  financial  statements as a whole, and  in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The  Company’s  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for  the  other  information.  The  other 

information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 

to  Board’s  Report,  Business  Responsibility  Report,  Corporate  Governance  Report,  and 

Shareholder Information, but does not  include  the standalone financial statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In  connection with our  audit of  the  financial  statements, our  responsibility  is  to  read  the 

other  information  and,  in doing  so,  consider whether  the  other  information  is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other  information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of 

the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 

view  of  the  financial  position,  financial  performance  and  cash  flows  of  the Company  in 

accordance  with  the  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  India,  including  the 

accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding  of  the  assets  of  the Company  and  for preventing  and detecting  frauds  and 

other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  appropriate  accounting  policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance  of  adequate  internal  financial  controls,  that  were  operating  effectively  for 

ensuring  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  the  accounting  records,  relevant  to  the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In  preparing  the  financial  statements,  management  is  responsible  for  assessing  the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so. 
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The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when  it exists. Misstatements can arise  from  fraud or error and are 

considered material  if,  individually or  in  the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

 

We also: 

 Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of material misstatement  of  the  financial  statements, 

whether due  to  fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures  responsive  to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis  for  our  opinion.  The  risk  of  not  detecting  a material misstatement  resulting 

from  fraud  is  higher  than  for  one  resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve 

collusion,  forgery,  intentional  omissions,  misrepresentations,  or  the  override  of 

internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 

the  Companies Act,  2013, we  are  also  responsible  for  expressing  our  opinion  on 

whether  the  company has adequate  internal  financial  controls  system  in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls 

 

 Evaluate  the appropriateness of accounting policies used and  the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting  and,  based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained,  whether  a  material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are  required  to draw attention  in our auditor’s  report  to  the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate  the overall presentation, structure and content of  the  financial statements, 

including  the  disclosures,  and  whether  the  financial  statements  represent  the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

39



 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 

that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably  knowledgeable  user  of  the  standalone  financial  statements  may  be 

influenced.  We  consider  quantitative  materiality  and  qualitative  factors  in  (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 

 We  communicate  with  those  charged  with  governance  regarding,  among  other 

matters,  the planned  scope  and  timing of  the  audit  and  significant  audit  findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 

 

 We  also  provide  those  charged  with  governance with  a  statement  that we  have 

complied  with  relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters  that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 

in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 

not be  communicated  in our  report because  the  adverse  consequences of doing  so 

would  reasonably  be  expected  to  outweigh  the  public  interest  benefits  of  such 

communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India interms of sub‐section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in 

the “Annexure I”, a statement on the matters specified inparagraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 

the extent applicable. 

 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the       
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement                   

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
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(d) In our opinion,  the  aforesaid  financial  statements  comply with  the Accounting 

Standards  specified  under  Section  133  of  the  Act,  read  with  Rule  7  of  the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

 

(e) With  respect  to  the  other matters  to  be  included  in  the  Auditor’s  Report  in 

accordance with the requirements of the Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

In our opinion and according  to  the  information & explanation given  to us,  the 

Company  has  paid/provided managerial  remuneration  in  accordance with  the 

requisite  approvals  mandated  by  the  provisions  of  section  197  read  with 

Schedule V to the Act. 

 

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2022  taken on record by  the Board of Directors, none of  the directors  is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(g) With  respect  to  the  adequacy  of  the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to  our  separate  Report  in  ʺAnnexure  IIʺ. Our  report  expresses  an  unmodified 

opinion on  the adequacy and operating effectiveness of  the Company’s  internal 

financial controls over financial reporting; 

 

(h) With  respect  to  the  other matters  to  be  included  in  the  Auditor’s  Report  in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  in 

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

 

a. There  has  been  no  pending  litigations  against  the  Company  having  any 

impact on its financial position in its financial statements  

 

b. The  Company  did  not  have  any  long‐term  contracts  including  derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 

c. There has been no delay  in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

 

d.  
i. The management has  represented  that,  to  the best of  its  knowledge 

and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 

of  funds)  by  the  Company  to  or  in  any  other  persons  or  entities, 

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified  in  any  manner  whatsoever  (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or 
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 provide any guarantee,  security or  the  like  to or on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons 

or  entities,  including  foreign  entities  (“Funding  Parties”),  with  the 

understanding,  whether  recorded  in  writing  or  otherwise,  that  the 

Company shall: 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified  in  any  manner  whatsoever  (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

iii. Based  on  such  audit  procedures  as  considered  reasonable  and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us to believe that the representations under sub‐clause (d) 

(i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis‐statement. 

 

                    For N B T and Co 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: ‐ 140489W 

       

 

Sd/‐ 

Ashutosh Biyani 

Partner 

M.No ‐ 165017 

Date: 30/05/2022 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN: 22165017ANUSNG4740 
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Financial 

Statements of SK International Limited  

 

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our Report of even date) 

 

(i) In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment: 

a.   

i. The  Company  has  maintained  proper  records  showing  full 

particulars,  including  quantitative  details  and  situation  of  Property, 

Plant & Equipment on the basis of available information. 

 

ii. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 

of its intangible assets on the basis of available information. 

 

b. The  Company  has  a  regular  program  for  physical  verification  of  its  fixed 

assets  by  which  its  fixed  assets  are  verified  in  a  phased  manner.  In  our 

opinion,  this periodicity of physical verification  is reasonable having regard 

to  the  size  of  the Company  and  the nature  of  its  fixed  assets. No material 

discrepancies were noticed on  such verification as  compared with available 

records. 

 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of 

immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

 

d. The  company  has  not  revalued  any  of  its  Property,  Plant  and  Equipment 

(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

 

e. The  company  is  not  holding  any  such  benami  property  under  the  Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, 

therefore he provision of this clause is not applicable to the company. 

 

(ii)  

a. In our opinion the Company does not maintain adequate Inventory records 

therefore we are unable to give our opinion on discrepancies between books 

records and physical Inventory. We have relied upon the certificate provided 

by  the  management  of  the  company  for  quantity  as  well  as  amount  of 

inventory  and  accordingly  the  same  has  been  considered  by  us  for  the 

purpose of financials.  
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b. The  company  has  not  taken  any working  capital  limits  in  excess  of  five  crore 

rupees,  in  aggregate,  from  banks  or  financial  institutions  at  any  point  of  time 

during the year on the basis of security of current assets.  

 

(iii) The company has not granted any  loans or provided advances  in  the nature of 

loans,  or  provided  any  guarantee  or  security,  secured  or  unsecured,  to 

companies,  firms,  Limited  Liability  Partnerships  or  other  parties  covered  in 

register maintained under section 189 of the Act and hence sub‐clause (a), (b), (c), 

(d), (e), and (f) of clause (iii) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

 

Investments made  by  the  company  during  the  year  in  any  companies,  firms, 

Limited  Liability  Partnerships  or  any  other  parties  are  not  prejudicial  to  the 

interests of the company.  

 

(iv) In  respect  of  loans,  investment,  guarantees  and  security  the  Company  has 

complied with provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 

 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits from public within  the meaning of 

Section  73,  74,  75  and  76  and  hence  clause  (v)  of  Para  3  of  the  order  is  not 

applicable. 

 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, Central Government 

has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub‐Section  (1) of Section 

148 of the Act in respect of activities carried on by the Company. Therefore, the 

provisions  of  clause  (vi)  of  paragraph  3  of  the Order  is  not  applicable  to  the 

Company. 

 

(vii)   

 

a. The company  is  regular  in depositing undisputed  statutory dues,  including 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State  Insurance,  Income Tax, Sales‐Tax, Service 

Tax, duty  of  customs, duty  of  excise,  value  added  tax,  cess  and  any  other 

statutory dues with appropriate authorities, where applicable. According  to 

the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  there  are  no  undisputed 

amounts  payable  in  respect  of  such  statutory  dues which  have  remained 

outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from 

the date they became payable. 

 

b. According  to  the  records of  the company,  there are no dues outstanding of 

income‐tax, sales‐tax, service  tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value 

added tax on account of any dispute. 
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(viii) According  to  the  information and explanations given  to us,  there exist no  such 

transactions  which  were  not  recorded  in  the  books  of  account  have  been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

  

(ix)  

 

a. The  company  has  not  defaulted  in  repayment  of  any  dues  to  a  financial 

institution, bank, and government during  the period. The company has not 

borrowed any amount by way of debentures.   

  

b. The company  is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or  financial 

institution or other lender during the period. 

 

c. Moneys raised by way of Term Loans were applied for the purpose for which 

the loan was obtained. 

 

d. Any funds raised by the company for short term purposes are not utilised for 

any long term purpose. 

 

e. The  company has not  taken  any  funds during  the  year  from  any  entity  or 

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates 

or joint ventures. 

 

f. The company has not raised any such loans during the year on the pledge of 

securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 

(x)  

a. The  company  has  not  raised  any money  by way  of  Initial  public  offer  or 

further Public offer (Including debt instruments) during the year. 

  

b. The company has not made any preferential allotment/ private placement of 

share  or  fully  or  partly  paid  convertible  debentures  during  the  year  and 

accordingly provisions of clause (x) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

(xi)  

 

a. On  the  basis  of  our  examination  and  according  to  the  information  and 

explanations  given  to  us,  no  fraud  by  the  company  or  any  fraud  on  the 

company by  its officers/employees has been noticed or  reported during  the 

year. 
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b. No  such  report under  sub‐section  (12) of  section 143 of  the Companies Act 

has been filed by the auditors during the year  in Form ADT‐4 as prescribed 

under  rule  13  of  Companies  (Audit  and  Auditors)  Rules,  2014  with  the 

Central Government. 

 

c. Auditors has not received any whistle‐blower complaints during the year by 

the company. 

 

(xii) The  company  is  not  a Nidhi  Company  and  accordingly  the  information  and 

explanations given to us, provisions of Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 

company. 

  

(xiii) On  the  basis  of  our  examination  and  according  to  the  information  and 

explanations  given  to  us,  we  report  that  all  the  transaction  with  the  related 

parties  are  in  compliance with Section 177  and Section  188 of  the Act,  and  the 

details have been disclosed in the Financial statements in Note no. 36 as required 

by the applicable accounting standards. 

 

(xiv)  

a. The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business. 

b. The report of company’s internal auditor for the audit period is considered by 

us.  

  

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

entered into any non‐cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 

him. 

 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45‐IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act,1934 and accordingly, provisions of clause (xvi) of Para 3 of the 

Order are not applicable. 

  

(xvii) The  company has  incurred  cash  losses  in  the  current  financial  year of  amount 

Rs.62.81 Lakhs and Rs.167.43 Lakhs in the preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There is no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the year, hence provisions of 

clause (xviii) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial  ratios, ageing and expected dates of  realisation of  financial assets and 
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payment  of  financial  liabilities,  other  information  accompanying  the  financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of  the evidence supporting  the assumptions, nothing 

has  come  to  our  attention,  which  causes  us  to  believe  that  any  material 

uncertainty  exists  as  on  the  date  of  the  audit  report  that  the Company  is  not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 

they  fall  due  within  a  period  of  one  year  from  the  balance  sheet  date. We, 

however,  state  that  this  is  not  an  assurance  as  to  the  future  viability  of  the 

Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 

of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

(xx) The  company  does  not  fall  under  the  provisions  of  Corporate  Social 

Responsibility  vide  section  135  (1)  of  The  Companies Act,  2013,  therefore  the 

provisions of clause (xx) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

 

(xxi) Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable at the standalone level 

of reporting. 

 

                    For N B T and Co 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: ‐ 140489W 

       

 

Sd/‐ 

Ashutosh Biyani 

Partner 

M.No ‐ 165017 

Date: 30/05/2022 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN: 22165017ANUSNG4740 
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub‐section 3 of Section 143 

of the Act 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SK International 

Export Limited (“the Company”) as at 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The  Board  of Directors  of  the  Company  is  responsible  for  establishing  and maintaining 

internal  financial  controls  based  on  the  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in  the Guidance Note  on Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls Over  Financial  Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention  and  detection  of  frauds  and  errors,  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 

under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 

financial  reporting  based  on  our  audit. We  conducted  our  audit  in  accordance with  the 

Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls  Over  Financial  Reporting  (the 

“Guidance  Note”)  and  the  Standards  on  Auditing  issued  by  ICAI  and  deemed  to  be 

prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of  internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued 

by  the  ICAI. Those Standards and  the Guidance Note require  that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  were  established  and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit  involves performing procedures  to obtain audit evidence about  the adequacy of 

the  internal  financial  controls  system  over  financial  reporting  and  their  operating 

effectiveness.  Our  audit  of  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a  basis  for  our  audit  opinion  on  the  Company’s  internal  financial  controls  system  over 

financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s  internal  financial  control  over  financial  reporting  is  a  process  designed  to 

provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding  the  reliability  of  financial  reporting  and  the 

preparation  of  financial  statements  for  external  purposes  in  accordance  with  generally 

accepted  accounting  principles.  A  Company’s  internal  financial  control  over  financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

 

(a)  pertain  to  the maintenance  of  records  that,  in  reasonable  detail,  accurately  and  fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

 

 (b)  provide  reasonable  assurance  that  transactions  are  recorded  as  necessary  to  permit 

preparation  of  financial  statements  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting 

principles  and  that  receipts  and  expenditures  of  the  Company  are  being made  only  in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

 

(c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have material effect on the 

financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  of  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation  of  the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  to  future periods  are 

subject  to  the  risk  that  the  internal  financial  control over  financial  reporting may become 

inadequate  because  of  changes  in  conditions,  or  that  the  degree  of  compliance with  the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In  our  opinion,  the Company  has,  in  all material  respects,  an  adequate  internal  financial 

controls system over  financial  reporting and such  internal  financial controls over  financial 

reporting were operating  effectively  as  at  31st March,  2022, based on  the  internal  control 

over  financial  reporting  criteria  established  by  the  Company  considering  the  essential 

components of  internal control stated  in  the Guidance Note on Audit of  Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For N B T and Co 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: ‐ 140489W 

       

Sd/‐ 

Ashutosh Biyani 

Partner 

M.No ‐ 165017 

Date: 30/05/2022 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN: 22165017ANUSNG4740 
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
No. March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021

Rs. Rs.

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital 2 733.20                                   733.20                                   
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 (71.21)                                   6.73                                       

661.98                                   739.92                                   

2 Non Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 13.02                                     11.88                                     
(b) Long Term Provision 5 8.33                                       6.96                                       
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 6 4.75                                       4.00                                       

26.10                                     22.84                                     

3 Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 7 130.66                                   48.50                                     
(b) Trade Payable

(i) MSME 41.93                                     69.48                                     
(ii) Other than MSME 104.18                                   23.70                                     

(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 22.74                                     12.73                                     
(d) Short Term Provision 10 26.58                                     15.49                                     

326.09                                   169.90                                   

Total 1,014.18                                932.66                                   

II. ASSETS
1 Non Current Assets

(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible 226.99                                   199.84                                   
(ii) Intangible 0.23                                       0.36                                       

(b) Non Current Investments 12 185.99                                   188.68                                   
(c) Trade Receivable Non Current 13 14.27                                     -                                        
(d) Other Non Current Assets 14 61.79                                     50.33                                     
(e) Deferred Tax Assets 15 42.96                                     43.21                                     

532.25                                   482.42                                   

2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 16 144.89                                   58.87                                     
(b) Trade Receivable 17 157.37                                   88.87                                     
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 4.14                                       222.79                                   
(d) Short Term Loans & Advances 19 2.83                                       12.37                                     
(e) Other Current Assets 20 172.70                                   67.36                                     

481.93                                   450.24                                   

Total 1,014.18                                932.66                                   
Schedules referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Balance Sheet
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date.

As per our report of even date,
For N B T and Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.  140489W

Ashutosh Biyani Hitesh Sadh Purti Sadh
Partner                                                                                              Director Director
Membership No. 165017 (DIN: - 03055331) (DIN: - 08228285)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2022 Sneha Sadashiv Parab Vikramsingh Rajpurohit
UDIN:-22165017ANUSNG4740 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(PAN No.: BPLPP6252E) (PAN No.: CEZPR7724F)

SK INTERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED
CIN No-  L18109MH2018PLC314141

8

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
SK International Export Limited

11

Particulars 

Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2022
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Note Year ended Year ended 
No. March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021

Rs. Rs. 

I. REVENUE
(a) Revenue from Operations 21      679.48                                  421.18                                  
(b) Other Income 22      57.48                                    73.23                                    

Total Revenue 736.96                                  494.41                                  

II. EXPENSES
(a) Cost of material consumed 23      655.25                                  419.96                                  
(b) Change in Inventory of Stock in Trade 24      (65.83)                                   (6.52)                                     
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses 25      123.08                                  94.93                                    
(d) Finance Cost 26      5.40                                      7.39                                      
(e) Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 27      14.88                                    14.13                                    
(f) Other Expenses 28      81.88                                    146.08                                  

Total Expenses 814.66                                  675.97                                  

III. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (77.70)                                   (181.56)                                 

(a) Exceptional items -                                        -                                        
(b) Prior Period Adjustment -                                        -                                        

IV. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (77.70)                                   (181.56)                                 

(a) Extraordinary Items -                                        -                                        

V. Profit before tax (77.70)                                   (181.56)                                 

Tax expense:
(a) Current tax -                                        -                                        
(b) Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 0.25                                      (26.68)                                   
(c) Excess/(Shortfall) prov. for tax in Previous year -                                        -                                        

Total Tax Expense 0.25                                      (26.68)                                   

VI. Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (77.94)                                   (154.88)                                 

Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations -                                        -                                        

Tax expense of discontinuing operations -                                        -                                        

VII. Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) -                                        -                                        

Profit (Loss) for the period (77.94)                                   (154.88)                                 

Details of equity share capital:
Paidup Equity Share Capital 733.20                                  733.20                                  
Face value of equity share capital (Per Share) 10.00                                    10.00                                    

Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic (1.06)                                     (2.11)                                     
(2) Diluted (1.06)                                     (2.11)                                     

Schedules referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Profit & Loss Statement
This is the Profit & Loss Statement referred to in our Report of even date.

As per our report of even date,
For N B T and Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.  140489W

Ashutosh Biyani Hitesh Sadh Purti Sadh
Partner                                                                                              Director Director
Membership No. 165017 (DIN: - 03055331) (DIN: - 08228285)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2022 Sneha Sadashiv Parab Vikramsingh Rajpurohit
UDIN:-22165017ANUSNG4740 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(PAN No.: BPLPP6252E) (PAN No.: CEZPR7724F)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
 SK International Export Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss account for the year ended March 31st, 2022

SK INTERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED
CIN No-  L18109MH2018PLC314141

Particulars
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 Cash flow from Operating Activities 

 Net Profit Before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss                   (77.70)                 (181.56)
 Adjustments for : 
 Provision for Audit Fee                      1.65                      1.65 
 Depreciation & Amortisation Exp.                    14.88                    14.13 
 Interest Income                   (10.12)                   (12.88)
 Finance Cost                      5.40                      7.39 
 Provision for Gratuity                      1.37                      0.52 
 Sundary Balances Written Off                          -                      57.12 
 Provision for Leave Enchasment                          -   13.18                                            -                      67.93 

 Operating Profit before working capital changes                   (64.52)                 (113.63)

 Changes in Working  Capital 
 Trade Receivable (Current and Non current)                   (82.77)                    62.40 
 Other Loans and Advances Receivable                      9.53                     (7.32)
 Inventories                   (86.02)                   (20.32)
 Other Current Assets                 (105.34)                    42.59 
 Trade Payables                    52.92                    54.01 
 Other Current Liabilites                    10.01                     (0.91)
 Short Term Provisions                      9.45                      8.81 
 Long term liability                      0.75                          -   
 Long term provision                          -                            -   
 Short Term Borrowings                    82.16                    45.44 

                (109.32)                  184.70 

 Net Cash Flow from Operation                 (173.83)                    71.07 

 Less : Income Tax paid                          -                            -   

 Less : Prior Period Expenses                          -                            -   

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)                 (173.83)                    71.07 

 Cash flow from Investing Activities 

 Purchase of Fixed Assets                   (41.90)                     (7.24)
 Sale of Fixed Assets                          -                            -   
 Other Non Current Assets (Net)                   (11.47)                      2.37 
 Purchase/Sale of Investment                      2.69                      9.53 
 Interest Income                    10.12                      3.59 

                  (40.56)                      8.25 

 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)                   (40.56)                      8.25 

 Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

 Proceeds From long Term Borrowing (Net)                      1.15                     (3.07)
 Interest Paid                     (5.40)                     (7.39)

                    (4.25)                   (10.45)

 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)                     (4.25)                   (10.45)

 Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (A+B+C)                 (218.65)                    68.87 

 Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents                  222.79                  153.92 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period                      4.14                  222.79 

 Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise : 
 Cash                          0.32                      8.91 
 Bank Balance : 
 Current Account                      3.81                  213.88 
 Deposit Account 
 Total                      4.14                  222.79 

As per our report of even date,
For N B T and Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.  140489W

Ashutosh Biyani Hitesh Sadh Purti Sadh
Partner                                                                                              Director Director
Membership No. 165017 (DIN: - 03055331) (DIN: - 08228285)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30/05/2022 Sneha Sadashiv Parab Vikramsingh Rajpurohit
UDIN:-22165017ANUSNG4740 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(PAN No.: BPLPP6252E) (PAN No.: CEZPR7724F)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
SK International Export Limited

 Year ended  

 Rs.  

SK INTERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED
CIN No-  L18109MH2018PLC314141

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31st, 2022

 Particulars 
 Year ended  

 Rs.  

(Amount in Lakhs)

 March 31st, 2022  March 31st, 2021 
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                          SK INERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31st, 2022 

 
 

Note 1 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Company Background  
 
The Company was incorporated on 13/09/2018. SK International Export Limited, The 
Company is engaged in the Garment Manufacturing Business. Company has been formed 
from conversion of Partnership Firm S.K. International (Export) Co. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 

1. Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 
(a) Basis of Accounting: 
 
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India (‘Indian GAAP’) and comply with the Accounting standards 
prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which continue to apply 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
(b) Use of Estimates: 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual result could differ from these estimates and the difference between actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialize. 
 
(c) Current/Non-Current Classification: 
 
Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 
 
i. It is expected to be realized or settled or is intended for sale or consumption in the 
company’s normal operating cycle; 
 
ii. It is expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; 
 
iii. In the case of an asset, it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or it is 
cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date; 
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iv. In the case of a liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months from the reporting date all other assets 
and liabilities are classified as non-current. For the purpose of current / non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its normal operating 
cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of services and the time between the 
acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 

2. Tangible and Intangible Assets 
 
(a) Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
Tangible fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated 
depreciation/accumulated impairment. The cost of fixed assets comprises of its purchase 
price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Expenses 
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are 
capitalized. Know-how related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and 
machinery is capitalized under relevant tangible asset heads. Pursuant to the requirements 
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has identified and determined 
the cost of each component of an asset separately when the component has a cost which is 
significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from 
that of the remaining asset. Profit or loss on disposal of tangible assets is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Tangible Fixed assets retired from active use and held for 
disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are 
disclosed separately under ‘Other Current Assets’. Any expected loss is recognized 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
(b) Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible 
assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Profit or Loss on disposal of 
intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
(c) Capital Work in Progress & Capital Advances 
 
Cost of Assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital 
work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each 
balance sheet date are disclosed as Short Term Loans & Advances. 
 
(d) Depreciation and Amortization: 
 
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided using the Straight Line Method based on 
the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. The estimate of the useful life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice 
which considered the nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical wear and 
tear, the operating conditions of the asset, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers 
warranties and maintenance support, etc. Significant components of assets identified 
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separately pursuant to the requirements under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
depreciated separately over their useful life. The residual value, useful life and method of 
depreciation of an asset is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively 
 
(e) Impairment 
 
At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment in the carrying amount of the Company’s assets. If any such indication exists, 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An assessment is also done at 
each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized 
for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any 
such indication exists the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying amount of 
the fixed asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal 
of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. After 
recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation 
charge for the fixed asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less its residual value (if any), on straight line basis over its remaining useful life. 
 

3. Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer. The amount recognized as sale is exclusive of sales tax/VAT/GST 
and is net of returns & discounts. Sales are stated gross of excise duty as well as net of excise 
duty (on goods manufactured and outsourced), excise duty being the amount included in 
the amount of gross turnover. The excise duty related to the difference between the closing 
stock and opening stock is recognized separately as part of changes in inventories of 
finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade. Revenue from service is recognized as 
per the completed service contract method. Processing income is recognized on accrual basis 
as per the contractual arrangements. Dividend income is recognized when the right to 
receive payment is established. Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis. 
 

4. Lease Accounting 
Assets taken on operating lease: 
 
Lease rentals on assets taken on operating lease are recognized as expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on straight line basis. 
 

5. Inventory 
 
(a) Raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores, spares, 
components, consumables and stock-in-trade are carried at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable value is made on an item-by item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks 
are valued at net realizable value. 
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(b). In determining cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, 
components and consumables, weighted average cost methods used. Cost of inventory 
comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable 
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present 
location and condition. 
 
(c) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing 
materials, inappropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads, excise duty as 
applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of 
production facilities. 
 

6. Investments 
 
Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Investments that are 
readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of 
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-
term investments. Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. The 
comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of 
investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution in the 
value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the 
opinion of the management. Reversal of such provision for diminution is made when there 
is a rise in the value of long term investment, or if the reasons for the decline no longer exist. 
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

7. Transactions in Foreign Currency 
 
(a) Initial recognition: 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the 
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on 
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
 
(b).Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date: 
 
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are restated at the closing exchange rates. 
Non-monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
(c).Forward exchange contracts: 
 
The Company had not entered into any forward exchange contracts to hedge against its 
foreign currency exposures relating to the underlying transactions and firm commitments. 
The Company had not entered into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes. 
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8. Trade receivables 
 
Trade receivables are stated after writing off debts considered as bad.  
 

9. Employee Benefits 
 
A. Short Term Employee Benefits: 
 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which 
the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted 
amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services 
rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid. 
 
B. Post-employment benefits: 
 
(a) Defined contribution plans :  
 
Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government 
administered pension fund scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme 
for eligible employees. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they relate. 
 
(b) Defined benefit plans 
 
Provident fund scheme  
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund 
scheme, for the eligible employees. 
 
Gratuity scheme 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the company on retirement, death, 
permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the provisions of the Payment of 
Gratuity Act 1972, or company’s scheme whichever is more beneficial. In current year 
company has recognized Rs. 1.17 Lacs as expense in the Profit and Loss account, based on 
the Certificate issued by Actuaries.  
 
 

10. Research and Development 
 
Research and Development expenditure of a revenue nature is expensed out under the 
respective heads of account in the year in which it is incurred. Fixed assets utilized for 
research and development are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies 
stated for Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets. 
 
 

11. Provision for Taxation 
 
Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the 
tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the 
period).The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or 
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assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is 
reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is 
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are 
recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realization. 
 

12. Provisions and Contingencies 
 
The Company creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past 
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a 
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an 
outflow of resources. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of 
which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 

13. Earnings per Share 
 
The Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the profit after 
tax for the year by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
 

14. Borrowing Cost 
 
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with 
the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing 
costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 
 

15. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand 
deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments where the original 
maturity is three months or less. 
 

16. Government Grants and Subsidies 
 
The Company is not entitled to any subsidy from government authorities in respect of 
manufacturing units located in specified regions: Grants in the nature of subsidy which are 
nonrefundable are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis, where there 
is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with all the necessary conditions 
attached to them. Grants in the nature of subsidy which are refundable are shown as 
Liabilities in the Balance Sheet. 
 
 

17. Measurement of EBITDA 
 
The Company has opted to present earnings before interest (finance cost), tax, depreciation 
and amortization (EBITDA)as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and 
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Loss for the year. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from 
continuing operations. 
 

18. Segment Reporting 
 
i) Business Segment 
 
a. The business segment has been considered as the primary segment. 
 
b. The Company’s primary business segments are reflected based on principal business 
activities, the nature of service, the differing risks and returns, the organization structure 
and the internal financial reporting system. 
 
c. The Company’s primary business comprises of manufacturing & supply of re-active 
power compensation systems, harmonic filters & other engineering goods and since it is the 
only reportable segment as envisaged in Accounting Standard 17. ‘Segment Reporting’. 
Accordingly, no separate disclosure for Segment Reporting to be made in the financial 
statements of the Company. 
 
ii) Geographical Segment 
 
A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in 
providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject 
to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic 
environments. The company provides products or services only through single 
establishment. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for Segment Reporting to be made in the 
financial statements of the Company. 
 

19. The Company has recognized deferred tax arising on account of timing differences, 
being the difference between the taxable income and accounting income, that 
originates in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 
period(s) in compliance with Accounting  standard (AS 22) – Accounting for Taxes 
on income. 
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Note 2 - SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at March 31st, 2022 As at March 31st, 2021

Rs. Rs.
Authorised Share Capital

77,00,000 (P.Y. 77,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid up. 770.00                                   770.00                                   

Total 770.00                                   770.00                                   

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up :

73,31,954 (P.Y. 73,31,954) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid up. 733.20                                   733.20                                   

Total 733.20                                   733.20                                   

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 73.32                                     73.32                                     
Add: Shares issued during the year -                                         
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 73.32                                     73.32                                     

2.2) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

2.3) Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company

No. of Shares held % of holding No. of Shares held % of holding

Hitesh Sadh 23.77                               44.41% 23.77                                     44.41%
Shrawankumar Sadh 19.47                               36.38% 19.47                                     36.38%
Swarnalata Sadh 7.27                                 13.59% 7.27                                       13.59%

2.4) Shareholding of Promoters

No. of Shares % of total Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares
Hitesh Shrawankumar Sadh 24.43                               33.32% 24.43                                     33.32% -                                     
Shrawankumar Phoolkumar Sadh 19.65                               26.80% 19.65                                     26.80% -                                     
Swarnalata Shravan Kumar Sadh 7.27                                 9.92% 7.27                                       9.92% -                                     
Sohit Sadh 0.14                                 0.19% 0.14                                       0.19% -                                     
Purti Hitesh Sadh 0.14                                 0.19% 0.14                                       0.19% -                                     
Shilpi Sadh 0.14                                 0.19% 0.14                                       0.19% -                                     
Vijay Rakesh Sadh 0.10                                 0.13% 0.10                                       0.13% -                                     
Total 51.86                               70.73% 51.86                                     70.73% -                                     

Note 3 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Surplus / (Deficit) in statement of profit and loss :
Balance as per the last financial statement (191.27)                                  (36.39)                                    
Add: Profit /Loss (-) for the year (77.94)                                    (154.88)                                  

Security Premium 198.00                                   198.00                                   

Total (71.21)                                    6.73                                       

Note 4 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Secured
-From Bank/Financial Institution
Term Loan 13.02                                     11.88                                     

13.02                                     11.88                                     

1. Period of default -                                         -                                         
2. Amount -                                         -                                         

Total 13.02                                     11.88                                     

Notes:

(d) Details of Borrowings

 Particulars 
 As at March 31st, 2022 
(Amount outstanding) 

 As at March 31st, 2021 
(Amount outstanding) 

1.  Term loan (for car purchase) Non current - 4.9 
Current - 0.94

                                            -   

2. Term loan (for car purchase) Non current - 8.12 
Current- 3.56

Non current - 11.88 
Current  - 3.07

Promoter Name

(c) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions: 

 Details of  Security 

Car hypothecate as a security to Nissan Renault Financial Services India Pvt Ltd 

Car hypothecate as a security to Yes Bank Limited

Particulars

In case of continuing default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of loans and 
interest  with respect to above

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to
the No. of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(a)  The company is avaialing Term Loan facility which is secured against hypothecation of assets purchased out of loan proceedings.

(b) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken. In respect of the term loans which were taken in the previous year, 
those were applied in the respective year for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

As at March 31st, 2021As at March 31st, 2022

As at March 31st, 2022 As at March 31st, 2021  % Change during the 
year 

SK INTERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31st, 2022

The company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The
Dividend proposed by the Board of Director is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the period ended 31st March 2022, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs. Nil)

(Amount in Lakhs)

2.1) Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
the year :
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Note 5 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Provision of Gratuity 8.33                                        6.96                                        

Total 8.33                                        6.96                                        

Note 6 - OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Security Deposit 4.75                                        4.00                                        

Total 4.75                                        4.00                                        

Note 7 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Secured
-From Bank/Financial Institution
PCFC Loans 101.61                                    45.44                                      
RBL OD account 24.56                                      -                                         
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 4.50                                        3.07                                        

130.66                                    48.50                                      

1. Period of default -                                         -                                         
2. Amount -                                         -                                         

Total 130.66                                    48.50                                      

 Particulars 
 As at March 31st, 2022 
(Amount outstanding) 

 As at March 31st, 2021 
(Amount outstanding) 

1.  PCFC (Pre shipment credit and Post shipment credit in 
foreign currency) facility taken from RBL Bank

                              101.61                                       45.44 

2. OD against FD (facility taken from RBL Bank)                                 24.56                                             -   

2. LER for hedge the currencty (facility taken from RBL 
Bank)

                                  4.50                                             -   

Notes:

Note 8 - TRADE PAYABLE
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Micro and Small Enterprise 41.93                                      69.48                                      
Other than MSME
Creditors for Goods 103.09                                    18.59                                      
Creditors for Expenses 1.10                                        5.12                                        

Total 146.11                                    93.18                                      

Notes:
A) Details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Principal Amount                                       41.93                                   69.48 
Interest Amount                                             -                                           -   
Total                                       41.93                                   69.48 

                                            -                                           -   

                                            -                                           -   

                                            -                                           -   
                                            -                                           -   

B) Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at March 31st, 2022
Particulars  Less than 1 year 1-2  years 2-3 years  More than 3 years Total

(i)MSME 9.33                                 31.18                                      1.42                                        -                                     41.93                                  
(ii)Others 90.85                               11.00                                      2.33                                        -                                     104.18                                
(iii) Disputed dues – 
MSME -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     
(iv) Disputed dues - 
Others -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     

As at March 31st, 2021
Particulars  Less than 1 year 1-2  years 2-3 years  More than 3 years Total

(i)MSME 68.61                               0.87                                        -                                         -                                     69.48                                  
(ii)Others 21.89                               1.81                                        -                                         -                                     23.70                                  
(iii) Disputed dues – 
MSME -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     
(iv) Disputed dues - 
Others -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     

Note 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Statutory Dues Payable 1.20                                        1.79                                        
Advance from Customers 0.54                                        0.65                                        
Other Payable 20.99                                      10.28                                      

Total 22.74                                      12.73                                      

Note 10 - SHORT TERM PROVISION
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Other Provision 17.11                                      7.54                                        
Audit Fees 1.65                                        -                                         
Salary Payable 7.82                                        7.95                                        

Total 26.58                                      15.49                                      

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year; 

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

1.Pre shipment credit limits - 100 Lacs against security Fixed Depsoit amount Rs. 105 Lacs,                            
2.Post shipment credit limits - 100 Lacs against security Fixed Deposit amount Rs. 105 Lacs.

 Details of  Security 

Total limits amount Rs. 45 Lacs against security Fixed Deposit amount Rs. 50 Lacs.

Total limits amount Rs. 20 Lacs against security Fixed Deposit amount Rs. 25 Lacs.

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year

1.The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and  The Company has complied with the requirement of filing of quarterly returns/ statements of current 
assets with the banks or financial institutions, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

In case of continuing default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of loans and 
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Note 11 - Fixed Assets

Balance as at 31 
st Mar 2021

Additions Disposals Balance as at 
31st Mar 2022

Balance as at 
31 March 2021

Depreciation 
charge for the 

year

Adjustment due 
to revaluations

On disposals Balance as at 
31st Mar 2022

Balance as at 
31st Mar 2022

Balance as at 
31st Mar 2021

Tangible Assets
Computer 5.04                     0.79                     -                       5.83                     2.23                     0.49                     -                       -                       2.71                     3.11                     2.81                     
Furniture 13.64                   0.77                     -                       14.41                   2.95                     1.32                     -                       -                       4.27                     10.14                   10.69                   
Land & Building 140.84                 22.87                   -                       163.71                 11.36                   5.25                     -                       16.62                   147.09                 129.48                 
Motor Car 38.73                   6.87                     -                       45.60                   12.30                   4.75                     -                       17.05                   28.55                   26.43                   
Plant & Machinery 35.59                   10.61                   -                       46.20                   5.17                     2.94                     -                       8.10                     38.10                   30.43                   

Intangible Assets
Software 0.57                     -                       -                       0.57                     0.27                     0.11                     -                       -                       0.38                     0.19                     0.30                     
Trademark 0.10                     -                       -                       0.10                     0.04                     0.02                     -                       -                       0.06                     0.04                     0.06                     

Total 234.53                 41.90                   -                       276.43                 34.32                   14.88                   -                       -                       49.20                   227.23                 200.20                 

(i) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year

(ii)

(iii) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company

Relevant line 
item in the 
Balance sheet 

Description of 
item of property 

Gross carrying 
value 

Title deeds held 
in the name of 

Property held 
since which date 

Reason for not 
being held in the 
name of the 
company** 

PPE **also indicate if 
in dispute 

Investment 
property

 - 

PPE retired from 
active use and 
held for disposal

 - 

others 

Whether title deed holder is a 
promoter, director or relative# of 
promoter*/ director or employee 
of Promoter/ director 

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The company has no assets under capital work in progress as at March 31, 2022 .

Net BlockFixed Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation

Notes:-

(Amount in Lakhs)
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Note 12 - NON CURRENT INVESTMENT
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Fixed Deposit 185.99                                    188.68                                    

Total 185.99                                    188.68                                    

Note 13 - TRADE RECIEVABLE NON CURRENT
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Considered Good, Outstanding for:
- More than 1 Year 14.27                                      -                                         

Total 14.27                                      -                                         
(Refer note no 17 for trade recievable schedule)

Note 14 - OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Security Deposit 5.82                                        7.90                                        
Deposits with Revenue Authorities (GST) 40.47                                      42.43                                      
Income Tax Receivables 4.27                                        -                                         
Other Non Current Assets 11.24                                      -                                         

Total 61.79                                      50.33                                      

Note 15 - DEFFERED TAX ASSETS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Deferred Tax Assets 42.96                                      43.21                                      

Total 42.96                                      43.21                                      

Note 16 - INVENTORIES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
-Raw Material 48.78                                      28.59                                      
-Finished Goods 87.30                                      20.86                                      
-Samples 5.68                                        7.19                                        
-Packing Material 3.13                                        2.22                                        

Total 144.89                                    58.87                                      

Note 17 - TRADE RECIEVABLE
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Considered Good, Outstanding for:
- More than 6 Months 7.54                                        39.51                                      
- Less than 6 Months 149.83                                    49.35                                      

Total 157.37                                    88.87                                      

A) Trade Receivables ageing schedule
As on March 31, 2022
  Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 149.83                             7.54                                        14.27                                      -                                     -                                     171.64                                

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – cons.  doubtful -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     

As on March 31, 2021
  Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 39.51                               49.36                                      -                                         -                                     -                                     88.87                                  

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – cons.  doubtful -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     -                                     

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     -                                     
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -                                   -                                         -                                         -                                     -                                     -                                     

Note 18 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Cash on Hand 0.32                                        8.91                                        
(As certified by management)
Balance with Banks :
on Current Accounts 3.81                                        213.88                                    

Total 4.14                                        222.79                                    

Note 19 - SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Advances to Staff 1.83                                        1.56                                        
Others 1.00                                        10.81                                      

Total 2.83                                        12.37                                      

Note 20 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
GST Receivable 30.94                                      5.98                                        
Advance to Suppliers 134.47                                    26.63                                      
Income Tax Receivable 3.31                                        -                                         
Deposits with Revenue Authorities 0.08                                        33.05                                      
Export Incentives Recievable 3.11                                        0.92                                        
Prepaid Expenses 0.80                                        0.78                                        

Total 172.70                                    67.36                                      

Note 21 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Sale of Products
- Export Sales 278.17                                    170.72                                    
- Domestic Sales 363.50                                    151.90                                    
Sale of Services
- Export Services -                                         -                                         
- Domestic Services 37.82                                      98.56                                      
Other Operating Revenues -                                         -                                         

Total 679.48                                    421.18                                    
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Note 22 - OTHER INCOME
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Interest Income 10.23                                     12.88                                     
Rent Income 16.06                                     9.00                                       
Foreign Exchange Gains 2.41                                       6.85                                       
Sale of Meis Licences 8.75                                       35.93                                     
Other Export Incentives -                                         7.75                                       
Discount Received 0.23                                       0.81                                       
Duty Drawback Received 7.06                                       -                                         
Profit / Loss on Forword Booking 11.53                                     -                                         
Other Income 1.22                                       -                                         

Total 57.48                                     73.23                                     

Note 23 - COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Opening inventory of Raw Material 28.59                                     14.79                                     
Add: Purchases of Raw Material 524.33                                   228.51                                   
Add: Direct Expenses 151.10                                   205.26                                   
Less: Closing inventory of Raw Material 48.78                                     28.59                                     

Total 655.25                                   419.96                                   

Note 24 - CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF STOCK IN TRADE
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 30.28                                     23.75                                     

Closing Stock of Finished Goods 96.11                                     30.28                                     

Total (65.83)                                    (6.52)                                      

Note 25 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Salary & Remuneration 111.41                                   79.94                                     
Director Sitting Fee 0.85                                       1.35                                       
Bonus -                                         1.57                                       
Conveyance 2.85                                       3.46                                       
Provision of Gratuity 1.37                                       1.93                                       
Other Employee Benefits 6.61                                       6.68                                       

Total 123.08                                   94.93                                     

Note 26 - FINANCE COST
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Interest Expense 4.71                                       2.12                                       
Other borrowing cost 0.69                                       5.27                                       

Total 5.40                                       7.39                                       

Note 27 - DEPRICIATION & AMORTISATION
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Depreciation 14.75                                     14.00                                     
Amortisation 0.13                                       0.13                                       

Total 14.88                                     14.13                                     

Note 28 - OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Business Promotion 2.58                                       1.99                                       
Power & Fuel 12.00                                     10.99                                     
Office Expenses 2.26                                       5.29                                       
Legal & Professional Fee 10.15                                     9.06                                       
Discount Expense 0.68                                       15.37                                     
Factory expense 1.96                                       3.93                                       
Rent 0.50                                       4.50                                       
Repair & Maintenance 8.46                                       5.47                                       
Society Charges 1.35                                       1.44                                       
Property Tax Maintenance Exp (Society) 3.13                                       1.26                                       
Transport Charges 6.72                                       3.60                                       
Travelling Expense 3.85                                       1.15                                       
Commission 8.70                                       1.00                                       
Other Expenses 9.90                                       7.36                                       
Handwork Charges -                                         1.11                                       
Mending Expense 2.73                                       7.10                                       
Stitching expense -                                         5.88                                       
Sundary Balances Written Off 1.15                                       57.12                                     
Sampling Expense 4.13                                       0.81                                       

Payment to Auditors
  As Statutory audit fees 1.65                                       1.65                                       

Total 81.88                                     146.08                                   
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SK INTERNATIONAL EXPORT LIMITED  

Additional Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31st, 2022 
 

(All amounts in Lakhs) 
 

29) i) Contingent liability in respect of capital contracts remaining to be executed -Rs. Nil 
(PY Nil ) 

        
 ii) Other Contingent liabilities– Nil 
 
 iii) Company did not have provided any corporate guarantee. 

 
30) Debit and Credit balances are subject to confirmation. 
 
31) In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the current assets have value on realization in 

ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated except 
as otherwise stated. 

 
32) Earning per Share (EPS): 
 

The Company has complied with the provisions of AS-20 on Earning per share as 
notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.  The same has been 
calculated as follows: 
 

Particulars For the Year ended  
March 31st, 2022 

For the Year ended  
March 31st, 2021 

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax (Rs) (77.94) (154.88) 
Weighted average number of shares 73.32 73.32 
Nominal value per share (Rs)  10 10 
Earnings per share (Basic) (Rs)  (1.06) (2.11) 
Earnings per share (Diluted) (Rs)  (1.06) (2.11) 

 
33) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:- 
  

The Company is in the process of compiling information from its suppliers regarding 
their status under the above act and hence disclosure, if any, of the amount unpaid as at 
the period end together with the interest paid/payable as required has been to the 
extent of information available:- 

S. 
No. 

Particulars For the Year ended  
March 31st, 2022 

For the Year ended 
March 31st, 2021 

a. The Principle amount and interest due 41.93 69.48 
b. Interest paid under MSMED Act, 2006 Nil Nil 
c. Interest due (other than (b) above) Nil Nil 
d. Interest accrued and unpaid Nil Nil 
e. Interest due and payable till actual 

payment  
Nil Nil 
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34) Disclosure regarding loans given, investments made and guarantee given pursuant to 
section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013: 
a) Loan Given: Nil  
b) Investment Made: Nil 
c) Guarantee Given: Nil 

 
35) Segment Reporting: 

The company is entirely working in textile business in 2 cities of India i.e. Mumbai and 
Noida. For the purposes of AS 17 regarding segment reporting, secondary segment 
formation on geographical segment is considered on the basis of revenue generated 
from that segment is beyond the threshold limits. Disclosure required as per the 
standard is given below: 
 

Particulars Segment Inter-segment Consolidation 
 Mumbai Noida Eliminations Total 
Segment Revenue:     
Sales:     
Domestic 185.41 34.89 - 220.30 
Export 267.12 11.05 - 278.17 
External Sales 452.53 45.94 - 498.47 
Inter-segment Sales - 181.01 (181.01) - 
Total Revenue 452.53 226.95 (181.01) 498.47 
Segment Results (Given)     
Net Profit/ (Loss) Before 
Tax 

17.43 (95.13) - (77.70) 

Segment Assets:     
Non-Current Assets   468.72   63.53  - 532.25 
Current Assets  338.65   143.28  - 481.93 
Total 807.37 206.81 - 1014.18 

 
36) Related Party Transactions 

In accordance with the Accounting Standard 18, the disclosure required is given below: 
i) List of related parties and relationship (as identified by management) 
 

Sr. No. Name of Person Relationship 
 
Key Managerial Person 

1.  Mr. Hitesh Sadh Managing Director 
2.  Ms. Mitti Mitesh Jain Company Secretary 
3.  Ms. Sneha Sadashiv Parab Chief Financial Officer 

 
Other Directors 

1.  Mr. Akshar Jagdish Patel Independent Director 
2.  Mr. Jay Narayan Naik Independent Director 
3.  Mr. Bhavin Mehta Independent Director 
4.  Mrs. Purti Sadh Director 

 
Other Related Party 

1.  M/s Sehej Saraa Fashion Private Limited Sister Concern 
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2.  M/s Aastha Prints Common Interest of Director 
3.  M/s Trands & Fashion Common Interest of Director 
4.  Mr. Shravankumar Sadh Relative of Director 
5.  Mrs. Swarnalata S Sadh Relative of Director 
6.  Mr. Sohit Sadh Relative of Director 
7.  Mr. Vijay Sadh Relative of Director 
8.  Mrs. Shilpi Sadh Relative of Director 
 
 
Transactions with Related Parties:  

Sr. No Name Nature of Transaction Amount 

1.  Mr. Shravankumar Sadh Salary 2.25 
2.  Mr. Hitesh Sadh Director Remuneration 6.75 
3.  Mrs. Purti Sadh Director Remuneration 7.09 
4.  M/s Sehej Saraa Fashion Private 

Limited 
Purchase Return 4.92 

5.  M/s Sehej Saraa Fashion Private 
Limited 

Advance to Supplier 112.55 

6.  M/s Aastha Prints Purchase 1.554 
7.  M/s Trends & Fashion Labour Charges 16.69 

 
Outstanding Balance of the Related Parties as on 31.03.2022 

Sr. No Name Credit/Debit Balance Outstanding as 
on 31.03.2022 

1.  Mr. Shravankumar Sadh Credit 8.81 
2.  Mr. Hitesh Sadh Credit 1.98 
3.  Mrs. Purti Sadh Credit 4.67 
4.  M/s Sehej Saraa Fashion Private 

Limited 
Debit 95.04 

5.  M/s Trends & Fashion Credit 3.33 
 
37) Employees Benefits Expenses                  
Description 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Salary & Remuneration 111.41 79.94 
Director Sitting Fee 0.85 1.35 
Bonus   - 1.57 
Conveyance 2.85 3.46 
Other Employee Benefits 7.97 8.61 
Total 123.08 94.93 
 
38) Value of Consumption of Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials, Spares and the 

Percentage of the Total Consumption  
               
Particulars For the Year ended  

March 31st, 2022 
For the Year 

ended  
March 31st, 2021 

(in Rs‘) (in %) (in Rs‘) (in %) 
(A) Raw Materials     
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Imported - - - - 
Indigenous 144.89 100% 359.84 100% 
Total - - - - 
(B) Stores & Spares     
Indigenous - - - - 
Imported - - - - 
(C) Finished Goods     
Indigenous - - - - 
Imported - - - - 
Total 144.89. 100% 359.84 100% 
     
Earning in Foreign Currency        
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
Export Sales Excluding Deemed Export  278.17 170.72 
   
Total 278.17 170.72 
 
Expenditure in Foreign Currency      
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
Travelling Expense - - 
   
Total - - 

 
 

39) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee and those in brackets represent 
corresponding figures for the previous year. 

 
40)  Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013: 
 

a) Details of Benami property: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder. 

b) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium: The Company has not advanced 
or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries 

 
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
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a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries 

 
c) Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Company has complied with 

the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

d) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not 
entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current 
or previous financial year. 

e) The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

f) Struck off Companies: Details of relationship with Companies struck off under 
Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 

Name of 
struck off 
Company 

Nature of 
transactions with 
struck off Company  

Balance 
outstanding  

Relationship with the Struck 
off company, if any, to be 
disclosed  

There is no transaction with struck off company. 
 

g) Undisclosed income: There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
that has not been recorded in the books of account. 
 

h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded or 
invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 
 

i) The figures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs of rupees upto two decimal 
places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than ` 1000/-. 

 
41) Analytical ratios:         
 

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021 Change Reason 

   A   B   A/B   A   B   A/B    
Current Ratio= 
Current assets/ 
Current liabilities 

481.93 326.09 1.48 450.24 169.90 2.65 -44.15% 
Increase in 
Short Term 
Borrowings 

Debt-Equity 
Ratio=Total Debt/ 
Shareholder's 
equity 

143.69 661.98 0.21 60.38 739.92 0.09 +133.33% 
Increase in 
Short Term 
Borrowings 

Debt Service (57.41) 3.42 (16.79) (160.04) 2.98 (53.70) +68.73% Reduction 
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Coverage Ratio 
= Earnings 
available for  
debt service/ Debt 
service 

in losses 

Return on Equity 
Ratio 
= Net Profits after 
taxes/ Average 
shareholder’s 
equity 

(77.94) 700.96 (0.11) (154.88) 817.36 (0.19) +42.11% 
Reduction 
in losses 

Inventory turnover 
ratio = Revenue 
from operations/ 
Average inventory 

679.48 101.88 6.67 421.18 48.70 8.65 -22.89% - 

Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio = 
Net credit revenue 
from operations/ 
Average trade 
receivables 

679.48 130.25 5.22 421.18 162.71 2.59 +101.54% 
Increase in 
Revenue 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio = 
Net credit 
purchases/ 
Average trade 
payables 

524.33 119.65 4.38 228.51 65.35 3.50 +25.14% 
Increases in 
purchases 

Net capital 
turnover ratio = 
Revenue from 
operations/ 
Working capital 

679.48 155.84 4.36 421.18 280.34 1.50 +190.67% 
Increase in 
Revenue 

Net profit ratio = 
Net profit/ 
Revenue from 
operations 

(77.70) 679.48 (0.11) (181.56) 421.18 (0.43) +74.42% 
Increase in 
Revenue 

Return on Capital 
employed = 
EBIT/Capital 
employed 
Capital Employed 
= Tangible Net 
Worth + Total Debt 
+ Deferred Tax 
Liability 

(72.29) 805.44 (0.09) (174.17) 799.94 (0.22) +59.09% 
Reduction 
in losses 

Return on 
investment = EBIT/ 
Average total assets 

(72.29) 973.42 (0.07) (174.17) 956.87 (0.18) +61.11% 
Reduction 
in losses 
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Notes referred to above form part of the accounts as per our report of even date attached. 
 
 

As per our report of even 
date, 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of   

For N B T and Co   SK International Export Limited  
Chartered Accountants      
ICAI Firm Reg. No.  
140489W   

  
  

Sd/-  Sd/- Sd/- 
Ashutosh Biyani  Hitesh Sadh   Purti Sadh  
Partner                                                  Director   Director  
Membership No. 165017  (DIN: - 03055331)   (DIN: - 08228285)  

  
Place : Mumbai Sd/-  Sd/- 
Date : 30/05/2022 Sneha Sadashiv Parab  VikramsinghRajpurohit  

Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

      
(PAN No.: 
BPLPP6252E) 

 (PAN No.: 
CEZPR7724F)  
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Shareholder Information 
 
General Shareholders Information: 
 
 
Date and Time of the AGM  Friday,  September  30,  2022  at  11.00  AM 

(IST). 

Venue of the AGM  78,  Ground,  A2,  Shah  &  Nahar  Industrial 
Estate,  Sitaram  Jadhav  Marg,  Lower  Parel, 
Mumbai – 400013. 
 

Book Closure Date  September 23, 2022 ‐  September 29, 2022.
 

Financial Year  April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. 
 

Dividend Payout  The  Board  of  Directors  have  not 
recommended  any  dividend  for  the  year 
under review. 
 

Listing on Stock Exchange  BSE Limited (SME Exchange) 
 

Stock Code (BSE)  542728  

International  Securities 
Identification Number  (ISIN)  in 
NSDL  and  CDSL  for  Equity 
Shares 
 

INE04ST01013 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 
 

KFin Technologies Limited 
(Formerly  known  as KFin  Technologies 
Private Limited) 
Selenium Building,  Tower  ‐  B,  Plot No.  31 & 
32,  Financial  District,  Nanakramguda 
Serilingampally,  Hyderabad,  Rangareddi, 
Telangana‐ 500032 
Tel: +91‐040‐6716 2222/7961 1000 
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: https://www.kfintech.com/ 
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Share Transfer System:  Transfer  of  shares  which  are  in 

dematerialized form will be done through the 
depositories  with  no  involvement  of  the 
Company.  
 

Dematerialization of Shares  As on March 31, 2022, the total shareholding 
of 7331954 Shares are Dematerialized.  
 

Details  about  Global  Depository 
receipts  or  American  depository 
receipts  or  warrants  or  any 
convertible instruments 

The  Company has  not  issued  any  Global 
Depository  receipts  or  American  Depository 
receipts  or  warrants  or  any  convertible 
instruments during the year under review.  

Company’s Website  The  Company’s  website  provides  a  brief 
profile  of  the  Company,  its  operations,  its 
management,  vision,  mission,  policies  and 
investor  info.  The  section  on  ‘Investor 
Relation’  serves  to  inform  the  stakeholders 
by  giving  complete  financial  details,  annual 
reports,  shareholding  patterns,  adopted 
policies  etc.  The website  of  the  Company  is 
www.skinternational.in.  
 

Corporate  Identification  Number 
(‘CIN’) 
 

L18109MH2018PLC314141 
 

Registered office address  78,  Ground,  A2,  Shah  &  Nahar  Industrial 
Estate,  Sitaram  Jadhav  Marg,  Lower  Parel, 
Mumbai ‐ 400013 
 

Investor Email ID  info@skinternational.in
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Market Price Data:   

     

Month  BSE Limited (SME Exchange)

Monthly High Price  Monthly Low price 

April 2021  19.00  19.00 

May 2021  ‐ ‐

June 2021  15.20 15.20 

July  2021  13.00 10.40 

August 2021  ‐ ‐

September 2021  ‐ ‐

October  2021  ‐ ‐

November 2021  11.20 10.08 

December 2021  12.00  8.07 

January 2022  12.00  11.61 

February 2022  10.00  10.00 

March 2022  12.00  12.00 

 
*  Data as available on the BSE Limited website 
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Notice of the Fourth Annual General Meeting: 
 
Notice  is hereby given  that  the Fourth Annual General Meeting  of  the Members of SK 
International Export Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 11.00 am IST 
at  the  Registered  office  of  the  Company  at  78,  Ground,  A2,  Shah  &  Nahar  Industrial 
Estate, Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013 to transact the following 
business: 
 
Ordinary Business 
 
1. To  receive,  consider  and  adopt  the  Audited  Standalone  Financial  Statements  of 

the  Company  for  the  financial  year  ended  March  31,  2022  together  with  the 
reports of the Auditors and Board of Directors. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Purti H Sadh (DIN 08228285), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re‐appointment. 
 

 
Registered Office:        By the order of the Board of Directors 
78, Ground, A2 Shah & Nahar    For SK International Export Limited 
Industrial Estate, Sitaram Jadhav        
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai ‐ 400013 
 
 
            Sd/‐ 

Vikramsingh Rajpurohit 
Mumbai          Designation  : Company Secretary  
September 3, 2022        Membership Number: A66938 
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Notes: 
 
1.  A  Member  entitled  to  attend  and  vote  at  the  meeting  is  entitled  to  appoint 

proxy/proxies to attend and vote instead of himself or herself. Such proxy/proxies 
need not be a member of the Company. 
 

2.  The  instrument  of  proxy  in  order  to  be  effective,  should  be  deposited  at  the 
registered  office  of  the  Company,  duly  completed  and  signed,  not  less  than  48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. 
Proxies submitted on behalf of  the Companies,  societies etc. must be supported 
by an appropriate resolution/authority letter, as applicable. 
 

3.  Members  are  requested  to  bring  their  copies  of  the  Annual  Report  to  the 
Meeting.  In order  to  enable us  to  register  your  attendance  at  the  venue of  the 
Annual  General  Meeting,  Members  are  requested  to  please  bring  their  folio 
number/ demat  account number/DP  ID‐Client  ID  to  enable us  to provide  a duly 
filled attendance slip for your signature and participation at the meeting. 
 

4.  Details as required in sub‐regulation (3) of Regulation 36 of the Listing regulations 
in  respect  of  the  Directors  seeking  appointment/re‐appointment  at  the  Annual 
General Meeting, forms an integral part of the notice. Requisite declarations have 
been received from the Directors for their appointment/re‐appointment. 
 

5.  The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from September 23, 
2022 ‐ September 29, 2022 in connection with the Annual General Meeting. 
 

6.  A Member desirous of getting any  information on the accounts or operations of 
the Company  is  requested to  forward his/her queries  to the Company at  least 7 
days prior to the meeting, so that, the required information can be made available 
at the meeting. 
 

7. Pursuant  to  Section 101 and Section 136 of  the Companies Act,  2013  read with 
relevant  Companies  (Management  and  Administration  Rules),  2014,  Companies 
can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to 
those  Members  who  have  registered  their  e‐mail  address  either  with  the 
Company or with the Depository. Members who have not registered their e‐mail 
address with the Company are requested to submit their request with their valid 
e‐mail  address  to  KFin  Technologies  Private  Limited  at 
umesh.pandey@karvy.com.  Members  holding  Shares  in  demat  form  are 
requested  to  register/update  their  e‐mail  address  with  their  Depository 
Participant(s) directly. Members of the Company, who have registered their email‐
address,  are  entitled  to  receive  such  communication  in  physical  form  upon 
request. 
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8. Members  who  are  holding  physical  Shares  in  identical  order  of  names  in more 

than  one  folio  are  requested  to  send  to  the  Company  or  Company’s  Share 
Transfer Agent  the details of  such  folios  together with  the Share certificates  for 
consolidating their holding in one folio. The Share certificates will be returned to 
the Members after making requisite changes, thereon. Members are requested to 
use the new Share transfer form SH‐4. 

 
9. The  Shares  of  the  Company  are  compulsorily  traded  in  electronic  form.  The 

Members  are  requested  to  forward  all  applications  for  transfer  and  all  other 
Shares related correspondence, including intimation for change of address, if any, 
to the Registrars and Transfer Agent of the Company at the following address: 

 
KFin Technologies Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) 
Selenium Building, Tower ‐ B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda 
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana‐ 500032 
Tel: +91‐040‐6716 2222/7961 1000 
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: https://www.kfintech.com/ 

   
10. Members holding  Shares  in  single name and physical  form are  advised  to make 

nomination  in  respect  of  their  Shareholding  in  the  Company.  The  Nomination 
Form SH 13 prescribed can be obtained from the Registrar and Transfer Agent or 
the Secretarial Department of the Company at its Registered Office. 
 

11. Details  of  Directors  seeking  appointment/re‐appointment  as  required  under 
Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations: 

   
1. Ms. Purti H Sadh, Director of the Company: 

 

Director  Identification  Number 
(DIN) 
 

08228285 

Date of Birth 
 

November 27, 1982 

Nationality 
 

Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board 
 

September 13, 2019 

Brief  Profile  including 
Qualifications 

Ms.  Purti  H  Sadh  holds  a  Bachelor 
degree  in  Arts  (Psychology  and 
Economics)  from  Mumbai 
University,  Maharashtra.  She  has 
more  than 8  years of  experience  in 
Textile  industry.  She  has  been  an 
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instrumental  force  in  formulating 
and  implementation  the  business 
strategies of our Company. 

Shareholding  in  SK  International 
Export Limited 
 

13730 shares 

List of Directorships held in other 
Companies  (Including  Private 
Companies) 
 

‐ 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 
Audit  and  Stakeholders’ 
Relationship  Committees  across 
Public Companies 

SK International Export Limited: 
 
Member: 
 
a. Stakeholder  Relationship 

Committee 
 

Relationship with Directors 
 

Wife  of  Mr.  Hitesh  S  Sadh, 
Managing Director of the Company. 

Number  of  Board  meetings 
attended during the year 
 

5/5 

Terms  and  conditions  of 
appointment / re‐appointment  

As  may  be  recommended  by  the 
Nomination  &  Remuneration 
Committee  and  approved  by  the 
Board of Directors. 
 

   
Registered Office:        By the order of the Board of Directors 
78, Ground, A2 Shah & Nahar    For SK International Export Limited 
Industrial Estate, Sitaram Jadhav        
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai ‐ 400013 
 
 
            Sd/‐ 

Vikramsingh Rajpurohit 
Mumbai          Designation  : Company Secretary  
September 3, 2022        Membership Number: A66938 
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Route Map for the Fourth Annual General Meeting  
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SK International Export Limited   
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L18109MH2018PLC314141 
Registered Office: 78, Ground, A2, Shah & Nahar Industrial Estate, Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower 
Parel, Mumbai ‐ 400013 
 

 
Attendance Slip 
 
Fourth Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at the registered office 
of the Company at 78, Ground, A2, Shah & Nahar Industrial Estate, Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower 
Parel, Mumbai – 400013 at 11:00 am IST 

 
Please complete the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, Joint 
Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip on request. 
 

DP ID No.   Client ID  Folio No. 
 

   
 
I/We  certify  that  I/We  are  a member/proxy/authorized  representative  for  the member  for  the 
Company 
 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company held 
on Friday, September 30, 2022 at the registered office of the Company at on 78, Ground, A2, Shah 
& Nahar Industrial Estate, Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013 at 11:00 am IST. 
 
 
Name of the Member/Proxy _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature ______________________________ 
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Form No. MGT‐11 
Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN        :     L18109MH2018PLC314141   
Name of the Company    :     SK International Export Limited 
Registered office                           :     78, Ground, A2, Shah & Nahar Industrial Estate,  
                                                                Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai ‐ 400013  
Name of the Member (s)  :                 
Registered address    :                 
E‐mail Id*      :               
Folio No/ Client Id    :               
DP ID        : 
 
I/We, being the Member (s) of …………. Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint 
 
1. Name  : …………………… 
Address : 
E‐mail Id  : 
Signature  :……………………or failing him 
 
2. Name  : …………………… 
Address : 
E‐mail Id  : 
Signature  :……………., or failing him 
 
as my/our proxy  to  attend and  vote  (on a poll)  for me/us  and on my/our behalf  at  the Fourth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 11:00 AM 
(IST) at the Registered office of the Company at 78, Ground, A2, Shah & Nahar Industrial Estate, 
Sitaram Jadhav Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai ‐ 400013  and at any adjournment thereof in respect 
of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Ordinary Business: 
 
1.     Approval  of  Audited  financial  statements  of  the  Company  for  the  financial  year  ended 

March 31, 2022; 
 
2. Appointment of Ms. Purti H Sadh (DIN: 08228285), who who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers herself for re‐appointment. 
 
Signed this…… day of……… 2022 
 
Signature of Shareholder             
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office  of  the  Company,  not  less  than  48  hours  before  the  commencement  of  the 
Meeting. 
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